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A Charitable, community based, not-for-profit volunteer
organisation, whose purpose is to keep Manly Beach a safe place to
swim; to prevent  loss of life and to develop and educate our youth

Our Mission
To study, practice, demonstrate and promote methods of lifesaving
To patrol surf bathing areas solely, or in conjunction with other Surf Life Saving Clubs and/or Local
Government Lifeguards.
To minimise the loss of life from drowning by providing and maintaining efficient lifesaving equipment.
To educate members and the community in beach, aquatic safety, the environment and promote skills
and knowledge in beach and surf recreation.
To provide facilities for enjoyable education and development of our youth, with additional emphasis on
the Junior Activities section of the club as a key part of our community service.
To provide access for disadvantaged and disabled groups to the services facilities and educational
programs of our club.
To promote competition to enhance the goals of the club and in order to foster sportsmanship and values
which will in turn promote harmony within the club and its relationship with the community
To encourage our Members to obtain training/accreditation to enable them to provide training programs
needed to help other club members and members of the community.
To subscribe to or otherwise aid benevolent, cooperative, charitable, national or other institutions or
other objects which in opinion of the Club Committee have moral or other claims to support or aid from
the club. 
To encourage public, corporate and government sponsorship and support of our Club and Surf Lifesaving
in general and to recognise that support whenever and wherever possible. 
To use all available resources to raise funds for the ongoing operation and future development of the club
and its community service. 
To promote the history of lifesaving and surfing and educate members if the club and the public through
the Australian Surf Museum. 
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Acknowledgment of Country
The Board and members of Manly Life Saving Club acknowledge the traditional owners of the lands where we
meet, train, patrol and compete. Manly's beaches, ocean and harbour are some of the most beautiful in the
world and we pay our respects to the Guringai people who, as owners of this land are part of the oldest
surviving continuous culture in the world. We thank the Guringai people for being caretakers of our beautiful
beach and pay our respects to their elders past and present and to all Aboriginal members of Manly Life
Saving Club.

WE ARE MANLY LIFE SAVING CLUB 

We pride ourselves on providing our Volunteers 
with a sense of belonging, education, skills and the opportunity to give back to the Community. We welcome
Australians of all backgrounds, beliefs and ages. 



Vales 2024/25
John Hicks
Richard Hickson
Jon ‘Wallaby’ Mitchell
William Richard Murray
Ross Ryan
Patricia A. Hawkins
David Hay Snr MBE
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Manly Life Saving Club Inc
Incorporated under section 26 of
Associations Incorporation Act

Surf Pavillion South Steyne,
Manly 
PO Box 141
Manly NSW, 1655

Phone: 02 9977 2742
Email: admin@manlylsc.com
Website: www.manlylsc.com
ABN: 37 100 339 513

Affiliated with Surf Life Saving
Australia. Manly Life Saving Club
Members thank Surf Life Saving
Sydney Northern Beaches Inc:
President Rod McGibbon; officials
and hard working staff for their
support this season. 

In addition, MLSC acknowledges
SLSSNB Key partners - Avene,
URM, Westfield Warringah Mall,
Northern Beaches Council, Dee
Why RSL and ICMS.

Photo Acknowledgement 
MLSC would like to thank those
that have contributed to the
photos within this report. 
Rex Morris and members of Manly Life
Saving Club.

While all care has been taken,
some information in this report
may have changed since its
publication.
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Leoni Graham – Hon. Secretary, 22nd June 2025

Notice is hereby given that the 114th Annual General Meeting of the Manly Life Saving Club Inc. will be held on
Sunday, 20th  July 2025, commencing at 10:30am.

The Meeting 
Will be held in the Hall at Manly Surf Pavilion.
Video Stream via Teams:
Members will be able to observe the AGM via a video link, but you will be UNABLE to vote. Please ensure that
your full name is visible when you request to join.
JOIN MEETING HERE
Meeting ID: 477 923 652 333 6
Passcode: hU3Z4Jv9

Agenda
1. Confirmation of Minutes of the 113th Annual General Meeting.
2. Adoption of the 114th Annual Report and Financial Statements.
3. Nomination of Life Members of the Manly Life Saving Club.

Having satisfied the provisions of Clause 22 of the MLSC Constitution the following member:
• JOHN PLATT, nominated by Chris Bell LM, seconded by Mel Pelly LM. Has been nominated by the Board for
Life Membership of MLSC. To be carried the nomination requires an 80% majority of the votes cast by those
members present and entitled to vote. The Constitution requires a secret ballot.

4. Special Resolution – NIL
5. Election of Directors of the Club for the 2025-2026 season1
6. Endorsement of Junior Activities Management Committee (See Club Constitution clause 20.1 (b) see below)
7. Election of Officers of the Club for the 2025-2026 season2.
8. Resolutions:
a. Affiliation: That affiliation be sought for the 2025-26 season with Surf Life Saving Sydney Northern Beaches
Incorporated. Further, that the articles, constitution, by-laws, regulations and resolutions, together with the
awards and equipment of Surf Life Saving NSW and Surf Life Saving Australia be accepted.
b. Charitable Purposes of the Club: That the Club endorse and confirm the charitable purposes of the Club as
set out in the Club Constitution at clause 3.
9. Consideration of proposed changes to the Constitution – NIL
10. Presentation of National/SLSA Service Awards
11. Presentation of Distinguished Service Awards
12. General Business as may arise.
13. Close meeting.

Notes
Nomination Forms are attached to this notice and are also available from the Hon. Secretary at:
secretary@manlylsc.com and must be completed and returned to the secretary no later than 5pm 13 July
2025.

Notice of 
Annual General meeting  
Manly Life Saving Club 

https://tinyurl.com/eafpepvw
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Junior Activities Group (Nippers) 
Notice of the 59th Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Fifty-ninth (59th) Annual General Meeting of the Manly Life Saving Club Junior
Activities Group (Manly Nippers) will be held on Monday, 16 June 2025, commencing at 7 pm. 
The meeting will be held via Microsoft Teams:
https://tinyurl.com/43hz9bnf
Please ensure each member joins separately, with full name displayed.

Agenda
1. Confirmation of minutes of the 57th Annual General Meeting
2. Adoption of the 58th AGM Report and Financial statement
3. Election of the office bearers for the 2025/2026 season
4. Confirmation of the Age Managers for the 2024/2025 season
5. Acknowledgment of the Manly Nipper sponsors
6. General Business as may occur
7. Close of meeting

VOTING ENTITLEMENTS 
Annual General Meeting: Persons eligible to vote at the JAC Annual General Meeting shall be;
i. Persons elected to JAC Executive and JAC Management Committees;
ii. Members of the MLSC Board; and
iii. Financial JAC/Parents/Guardian members A member wishing to nominate for office for the 2025/2026
season should complete the momination form  and return to the JAC Secretary in person or via email
nippers@manlylsc.com 7 days prior to the AGM.
For the avoidance of doubt that will be no later than Monday 9 June 2025 @ 18:59.

Notice of 
Annual General meeting  

Junior Activities Committee 
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PATRONS
Zali Steggall OAM MP
James Griffin MP
Mayor Sue Heins

VICE PATRONS
Cr Candy Bingham
David Hay MBE
Jean Hay AM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
President
Tim Cuthbert
Deputy President Lifesaving
Rebecca Crawford
Deputy President Competition
Graham Bruce
Deputy President JAC
Matthew Westcar
Secretary
Leoni Graham
Treasurer 
Jocelyn Webb
Club Captain
Kirsty Dollisson 
Director Member 
Services & Youth
Claude Busse
Director of Education
Rhani-Lee Payne
Director of Events
Andrean Duffy
Director of Water Sports
Grant Ellison
Director of Beach Sports
Hayley Miller
Public Officer
Russell Harrison
Director of Risk
Kenneth Murphy
Director Life Member
Shane Gilroy

OFFICERS OF THE CLUB
Publicity (Digital Media) 
Officer
Nicola Cleary
Child Protection Officer
Philipper Cave
Member Information 
Protection Officer
Simone Hill
Finance Committee
Chris Bell, Victoria O'Halloran, Leoni
Graham, Tim Cuthbert, Daniel
Mulcahy, Jocelyn Webb, Michael
Bushell 
Assistant Treasurer/s
Barry Seymour & Simon Gillespie
Head of Merchandising
Camille de Carmejane-Vesc  
Chair of Building Committee
Chris Bell
Building Committee
Chris Bell, Russell Harrison, Kyeema
Doyle, Mark Handley, Chris Kinsella,
Paul Hewitt
Financial Controller
Rob Eades, Leanne O'Neill
Club Chaplain
Ken Buckley
Administration 
Katrina Westcar
Jen Laird
Functions
Sophie Dunne
Operations
Jude Furniss
Finance and Operations
Leanne O‘Neill

Club Officers 2024/25
OFFICERS OF THE CLUB
Branch Delegate Board of
Management
Peter Gard
Branch Delegate Surf Sports
Glenn Stone
Vice Captains
Thomas Crawford
Robin Barham
Jules Clarkson
Ian Buck
IRB Captain
Vicki Cuthbert
Ski Captain
Tony Gilbert 
Board Captain
Tony Gilbert
Beach Captain
Hayley Miller
Surf Boat Captain
David Simmons 
Masters Captain
Michael Bochner
Competition Manager(s)
Glenn Stone
Katie Chalmers
Chief Instructor
Rhani-Lee Payne
Gear Steward/s 
Shane Gilroy 
Radio Officer
Alan Booth
House Committee Chair
Tony Bonner AM
Registrar
Ray Petersen
First Aid Officer
Kathryn Watts
Race Secretary 
John Thomson
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HEAD COACHES

Head Coach - Beach
Michael Kember

Head Coach - Water
Rachel Crerar

JAC LIFE MEMBERS 
Richard Cooper*
Ray Petersen
Maurice Kerrigan
Ron Holman
George Marley*
Pam Varga
Jill Valentine*
Graham Masters
Judy Tier
Cynthia Alley
Peter Alley
Alan Tier
Daniel Mulcahy
John Stratton
Annie Gleason*
Glenn Stone
Graham Bruce
Kemble Cowan
Gill Cuthbert
Tim Cuthbert

*denotes deceased

JUNIOR ACTIVITIES
COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE

Chairman
Matthew Westcar
Treasurer
Jenni Jordan
Superintendent
Kris Brock
Secretary
Amy Jackson
Education Officer
Kirsty Hawkins

Junior Activities Committee

AGE MANAGERS 

Under 6s
Vacant
Under 7s
Keri Jacka
Cesare Caoduro
Under 8s
Dom Smith
Under 9s
Robbie Begg
Chris Jacka
Under 10s
Lee Palmer
Under 11s
Jamie Murrell  
Under 12s
Luke McLeod
Under 13s 
Mark Seymour, Matt Westcar
Under 14s
Pete Hawkins

ADDITIONAL COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

Age Manager Representative
Ben Chalmers
Registrar
Katie Helmuth
Social Co-ordinator
Bridgette Banks
Competition Manager
Katie Chalmers
Officials co-ordinator 
Vacant
Communications
Kat Whitehead 
Training
Amy Woolston
Gear Steward
Chris Jacka
BBQ Coordinator
Caoimhe Toouli  



Life Members

2001 HERRING Robert J
2004 BENNETT Barry Christopher OAM*
2004 CRAWFORD Kenneth Herriot
2004 WOTTON Bernard G
2005 RIDDINGTON craig
2005 BENNETT Greg Mark
2004 CARROLL Michael
2005 TIER Anthony James
2005 WILKINSON Michael
2006 WILLIAMS Robert H
2006 McMAHON William
2007 ANDRIJIN Darryl John
2007 GRAY Colin John*
2007 VIECELI Anthony
2008 SEENEY Alan John
2008 MORAN Raymond Henry
2010 CONDIE Brendan Clifford
2010 McDONOUGH Robert Francis
2010 HORA Robert Alfred*
2013 FLOOD Naomi
2015 PARKER David G.
2017 FITZHARDINGE Michael Berkeley
2018 BONNER Anthony Frederick AM
2019 TIER Allan
2020 SEYMOUR Barry Lawence
2020 BRUCE Graham Edward
2020 BEACHLEY Murray Neil
2021 PELLY Melinda
2022 BELL Christopher William
2022 MULCAHY Daniel Gerard
2022 COGHLAN Cameron
2022 EPPER Mark Sydney
2023 DOYLE  John
2023 HALL Greg
2024 GILROY Shane
2024 SWEETMAN O’HALLORAN Victoria
2024 STONE Glenn
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1914 HOLMES Arthur Aka Capt*
1917 NOTTING Frederick Laurence Snr.*
1919 BARRY Albert William*
1919 MILLER Robert Auburn*
1919 McAULIFFE Sydney John Aitken*
1919 NOTT Lester Bernnan*
1919 TEDDIMAN James Cyril*
1919 WRIGHT John Vicars*
1919 WILKINS James Earle*
1920 CAMPBELL Frederick Henry*
1923 WRIGHT Stuart Cecil*
1923 LASCELLES Frank Elliott*
1923 KELLAM William*     
1923 HAY Harry Maitland*
1925 SMITH Norman Cecil*
1926 CRAKANTHORP Montague Churchill*
1927 FOX Eric Charles*
1928 WATSON Kenneth Walter C. MBE*
1932 HARDING Phillip Edward*
1935 TAYLOR John James Kennedy*
1935 MclNTYRE David Donald*
1937 WHITELEY Charles Robert Cutter*
1937 LOUDON Robert Bruce*
1941 FOSTER Kenneth Carlye* 
1946 WEST Claude Leslie*
1947 DAVIS Frank Crawford*
1947 CRUM Leo James*
1954 RYAN Michael J*
1959 O'TOOLE Eugene Lawrence*
1961 RIDDINGTON George Donald*
1961 PHILLIPS John Rex MBE*
1967 RIDDINGTON Max Gordan*
1967 TAYLOR Barry Hugh Robert*
1969 NOTTING Frederick Laurence Jnr.*
1974 TIERNAN Leonard*
1974 CRAIG Ian Angus*
1974 DAVIS Ernie OAM
1982 ALAGICH Joseph A
1984 SAINSBERY Warwick Grant
1989 BUCKMAN Stanley Joseph
1990 SNEESBY John Arthur
1996 DAWES Anthony John
1996 ADAMS Albert Charles OAM*
1997 CLYMER William Frank*
2000 PETERSEN Ray Vincent
2001 CLYMER Matthew J
2001 COATES James John*

Not Forgotten*
In 1919 the Club honoured all active members that returned from the War incapacitated (such that they were
precluded from returning to active duty), by making them Life Members.
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Albert Adams (OAM)* William McMahon Simon Gillespie Alexandra Hill Michael Keelan

Peter Alley Warren Riley Michael Shipton Gemma Margiotta Mark Petersen

Greg Bennett Noel Roberts Barry Seymour Frances Brenchley Robyne Smith

Stanley Buckman William Tricker Greg Booker John Szaka Glenn Stone

Darren Burke Anthony Vieceli Ruth Kelly Tim Cuthbert Florence Epper

Noel Carroll Robert Hora* Cameron Coghlan John Singleton Tommy Garrett

Brendan Condie Greg Pooley H Cowan Annie Gleason* Rhani-Lee Payne

Terrance Fitzgerald Michael Wilkinson Kate Hanson Christopher Bell Jane Pender

Michael Fitzhardinge Robert Williams Joel Lewis Andrean Duffy Paul Bailey

Peter Gard Anthony Tier Zane Ludlow Simone Hill Virginia Bennett

Grant Jackson Judy Tier Matt McCann Rebecca Crawford Sophie Tyner

Liz Lewis Max Humphreys Melinda Pelly Shane Gilroy Mel Thomas

Alan Lewis David Ronald Georgina Pelly Graham Bruce David Robinson

John Koorey Frank Ellis Gary Ballard Peter Ingle Leoni Graham

Graham Masters Noel Froggat David Ross John Thomson Julian Clarkson

Robert McDonough John Hicks Peter Russell Craig Haskins Kathryn Watts

Raymond Moran Geoffrey Thorsen Daniel Mulcahy Victoria O'Halloran Peter Turnbull

Ray Petersen Bruce Johnston* Janet Hall Russell Harrison Julie Kremer

C Riddington Cynthia Alley Sita Mason Susan McCall Robin Barham

David Roff Tony Bonner (AM) John Platt Greg Coppin Michele Kaye

Daryl Andrijin Guy Leech Julie Isbill Scott Crawford John Zdrillic

Philip Cox  Alan Seeney Robert Stewart Robert Eades Tim Ettle

John Doyle Alan Tier Steve Wilton* Debra Hanson Claude Busse

David Freeman* Mark Epper Colin Girdler Trent Herring Andrew Thomas

Donald Gain Lisa O'Mahony David Willows Warren Jones

Distinguished 
Service Members
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This year, we welcomed Felons as a major partner, joining our long-time partner 7 News. These Major Partners
provide substantial financial support, enabling us to perform at the level our community expects. 
Huge thanks to Dean (Felons), and Laura & Larissa (7 News).
Betty’s Burgers increased their support, donating an extra $2.5k in vouchers for carnival and special awards.
Harris Farm continues to back our Nipper BBQ and events. We also welcomed Clarke and Humel, whose
branding now appears on our Nipper Rash Vests—thank you, Cherie and Michael.
Shaw and Partners kindly donated two new Race One adjustable skis, worth over $10,000, for our
competition team and remain the title sponsors of the WOS Manly Open Classic. Thank you, Earl and team.
Wattle Court may be a new name, but it’s the same great home-building team from GJG—thank you, Daisy,
Mark and crew.
Aquify Pools, led by Matt Ranieri, continues to lead the way on Sundays with their age group banners—thanks,
Matt.
When we needed BBQ support, Amy from BMS stepped in—thank you, Amy! I look forward to seeing the crew
with the BMS banner behind them.
SASH (Small Animal Specialist Hospital) joined mid-season, offering expert advice to our pet-owning
members. Thanks to club member Justin Wimpole, Jerry, and the SASH team.
Linked Project Management, with Craig and Nigel at the helm, joined as partners and are enjoying ocean
paddles alongside us—thanks, Craig and Nigel.
Race One Surf Craft is now the naming sponsor of our Nipper Nats and continues to supply top-quality gear—
thank you, Mark and team.
Peninsula Orthopaedics partnered with a focus on the Cole Classic. Located in Northern Beaches Hospital,
they’ve helped many of us recover from injuries (they did my shoulder years ago!).
Bennett Surf Co generously provide crafts as prizes and discounts for members—thank you, Tank and team.
Little Pearl, just across the road, supports us with donations and member discounts—thank you.
Manly Grill, via Sean Blasdell, continues to donate a portion of its sales and distributes over 400 kids' meal
vouchers each Christmas—thank you, Sean!
Please support our sponsors whenever you can—and be sure to let them know you're from the club.

Sponsors & Major Supporters

“MLSC is incredibly fortunate to have the support of
our generous sponsors, helping us keep the beach safe

and educate our members and youth”

Graham Bruce ‘Brucie’ 
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It has been a genuine honour to serve my first year as your President of Manly Life Saving Club. Taking on the
role after Victoria O’Halloran was no small task, her leadership over the past two seasons, particularly through
one of the most challenging periods in our Club’s history, has left a lasting legacy. I want to sincerely thank
Victoria for her vision, resilience, and tireless commitment to this Club. She was, without a doubt, a hard act
to follow, and has been a fantastic mentor to me. 
 
This season brought its fair share of complexities, especially around our long-anticipated Club
redevelopment. With the release of the concept plans in October, the conversation around our DA reached
new levels, some constructive, some emotional, and some just plain loud. Through it all, our focus has
remained clear: to create a future home for Manly LSC that honours our past, supports our present needs,
and serves generations to come. We are now working toward submitting the DA, and I want to thank the
Building Committee and everyone involved in keeping this project moving forward with such determination,
professionalism, and patience. 
 
Of course, once the application is in, things will likely get even more interesting. We anticipate public debate,
advocacy efforts, and the need for strong, visible support, not just for the DA itself, but also for the major
fundraising that will follow. When that time comes, we’ll be calling on all our members and the wider Manly
community to stand with us. This will be a pivotal moment in our Club’s history, and rest assured, we’ll let you
know exactly how you can help when the time is right. 
 
While the redevelopment is vital, our future is about more than just bricks and mortar. Our strategy remains
grounded in the Club’s long standing aims and goals, guiding us to deliver excellent lifesaving services, foster
a strong and inclusive membership, invest in future generations, and maintain the spirit of volunteerism that
has defined us for 114 years. These strategic pillars are what shape our decisions today, and they ensure we
stay aligned with our values as we grow. 
 
Of course, at the heart of it all is our lifesaving work. I’m proud to say there were no drownings between the
flags at Manly Beach this season (thanks Joris—close call!). That’s not just a line we repeat, it reflects the skill,
vigilance, and commitment of our patrolling members. Under the guidance of our outstanding Club
Captain/Patrol Captains & Vice Captains, our patrols delivered with consistency, professionalism, and pride.
Thank you for showing up, staying sharp, and keeping our beach safe. 
 
Supporting our members remains a top priority, whether it's safeguarding the youngest in our ranks or
recognising the dedication of our most experienced. Child safety is a non-negotiable responsibility, embedded
in everything we do, both on and off the beach. Every child and young person in our club deserves to feel
safe, supported, and empowered, and that duty belongs to all of us. 

President’s Report 

 “Our club has always been, and will always
be, part of the Manly community. We must

continue to speak confidently about the
essential role we play in protecting and

educating both locals and visitors, while also
ensuring we have the facilities and

infrastructure needed to do that work well into
the future”. 

Tim Cuthbert 
PRESIDENT Manly Life Saving Club
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At the same time, we recognise the growing pressures on our members. Volunteering is a big commitment,
especially in the current economic climate. To acknowledge that, we're introducing a significant membership
discount for ‘A’ Grade and Long Service members next season, a practical gesture of thanks and a way to
support those who continue to give so much. 
 
We're also committed to continuing to building our Club that is inclusive, diverse, and welcoming. Every
member, regardless of age, background, experience, or identity, should feel valued and able to contribute. This
is more than a goal, it’s a standard we expect of ourselves and each other. 
 
Across the broader Club, there’s so much to celebrate. Our education, competition, events, and nippers
continue to thrive, thanks to the tireless efforts of our passionate and skilled teams. Every trainer, assessor,
coach, manager, age manager, committee member, and supporter contributes to making this Club what it is.
We are always stronger because of you. 
 
To the Board and admin team, thank you for your honesty, energy, and leadership this year. Your work behind
the scenes keeps this Club moving and enables us to meet challenges with confidence. To every member,
whether you're in your first season or your fiftieth, thank you for being part of this community and this
legacy. 
 
As we plan for the years ahead, we must continue to uphold strong financial governance. Balancing ambition
with responsibility ensures that every dollar we raise and invest reflects our mission and our members’
contributions. At the same time, we must stand proud and speak clearly about who we are and what we do.
There are still voices questioning our presence at South Steyne, as though 114 years of lifesaving,
volunteerism, and community service don’t count. This includes our flag pole rope banging in the wind is
annoying, the shark alarm is too loud are just examples. That narrative must be challenged.  
 
This Club has always been, and will always be, part of the Manly community. We must continue to speak
confidently about the essential role we play in protecting and educating both locals and visitors, while also
ensuring we have the facilities and infrastructure needed to do that work well into the future. 
 
The season ahead will be another significant one, with continued progress on the rebuild, stronger community
engagement, targeted fundraising, and a renewed focus on member wellbeing, inclusion, and retention. I look
forward to working with you all to shape a Club that continues to reflect the best of surf lifesaving and the
best of Manly. 
 
Go Manly and see you on the beach. 

President’s Report 



As the Director of Lifesaving, I am thrilled to reflect on a successful year at the Manly Life Saving Club. Our
dedicated members ensured beach safety, logging 14,802 patrol hours, despite challenges like adverse
weather and beach erosion. This season, we conducted 28 rescues, administered 905 first aid treatments,
and implemented over 2,203 preventive actions. 

Community feedback praised our approachable and knowledgeable patrol members. Special thanks go to our
new Club Captain and leadership team for their excellent preparation.

Our education team has been vital, focusing on training programs such as IRB crew and driver training,
advanced resuscitation, and radio communication. Many members also pursued advanced courses, like the
Advanced First Aid course. The Nippers program continues to thrive, engaging more young members in beach
safety and surf lifesaving, thanks to the guidance of the Junior Activities Committee.

This year, we had several nominations for Rescue of the Month at the branch level, with one of our members
winning this prestigious recognition for their outstanding response in a challenging situation. Looking forward,
fundraising for a new club building is a key goal, with a focus on securing ongoing community and sponsor
support. Accurate reporting of patrols and an increase in out-of-hours statistics will be crucial as we apply for
grants.

In summary, I am incredibly proud of our members' dedication and passion, which form the foundation of our
club's success. I extend my deepest gratitude to every member and our Board of Directors for their
unwavering support. Volunteering at Manly Life Saving Club is rewarding, and your efforts make our
community safer. 

I look forward to the 2025/2026 season and seeing you all on the beach soon!

2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT11

Deputy President Lifesaving

Rebecca Crawford 
Deputy President Lifesaving 

“Community feedback praised our friendly and
knowledgeable patrol members. A special thanks goes
to our new Club Captain and leadership team for their

outstanding preparation”
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This season was about embracing that learning curve while seeking new and improved ways to deliver
lifesaving services. It was a year of strengthening our team culture, refining operations, and above all,
ensuring the beachgoing public returned home safely.

Key achievements from the season include:
14,802 patrol hours completed by our dedicated volunteers
28 rescues
905 first aid treatments
and more than 2,203 preventative actions
Continued focus on fairness in rostering, patrol leadership development, and professionalism on the
beach
A strong and engaged patrol community, with improved communication and increased leadership
participation

This year, Manly LSC was proud to submit multiple nominations for Rescue of the Month, each highlighting
the skill, courage, and commitment of our members in high-stakes situations. 

As I reflect on my first season as Club Captain, I’m incredibly proud of what we’ve achieved together. But
none of it would have been possible without the people who make this club what it is.

To our Patrol Captains and Vice Captains—thank you for leading with integrity, care, and consistency. You are
the heartbeat of our patrol operations, and your calm leadership has made all the difference on even the
busiest days.

To the Lifesaving Management, I’m grateful for your wisdom, encouragement and steady hand throughout
the season. Your support allowed me to grow into this role and make informed decisions for the benefit of our
members.

To our Education and Training team, your work behind the scenes has empowered our patrols with the skills
and confidence they need to perform under pressure. The professionalism of our patrolling members is a
direct reflection of your commitment to continuous improvement.

And to every single patrolling member, from seasoned Patrol Captains to newly qualified SRCs—thank you.
Your time, energy and willingness to serve are what keep our beach safe. Whether on a scorching public
holiday or a cold, quiet Sunday morning, your presence matters.

Thank you for your patience, your resilience, and your trust in me during this first season. It’s been a privilege
to lead such an exceptional group of volunteers, and I look forward to continuing this journey together in
2025/2026. See you on the beach.

Club Captain

Kirsty Dollisson
Club Captain

“Stepping into the role of Club Captain for the
2024/2025 season has been an incredible
privilege - and a year of both learning and

leading.  What I found was a patrol community
that is deeply committed, highly skilled, and

always ready to step up when it matters most”



PATROL 7
Captain: John Zdrilic
Vice Captain:  Andrew Geddes

PATROL 8
Captain: Thomas Crawford
Vice Captain: Sarah Murdoch

PATROL 9
Captain: Kirsty Dollisson
Vice Captain: Nicholas Williams
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Patrol Captains &
 Vice Captains

PATROL 13
Captain: Michael Bochner
Co-Captain: Peter Ingle 

PATROL 14
Captain: Claude Busse 

PATROL 15
Co-Captain: Robin Barham
Co-Captain: Tim Ettle

PATROL 1
Captain: Andrew Furniss
Vice Captain:  Julia Elmes

PATROL 2
Captain: Jules Clarkson

PATROL 3
Captain: Kirsty Dollisson 
Vice Captain: Nicole Gorton 
Vice Captain: Lee Palmer 

PATROL 4
Co-Captain: James Keene
Co-Captain: Michael Studden
Vice Captain:  Gerard Kennedy

PATROL 5
Captain: Geoff Dickson
Vice Captain: Greg Vale

PATROL 6
Co-Captain: Peter Turnbulll
Co-Captain: Julianne Kremer

PATROL 10
Captain: Steve Garth
Vice Captain:  Christopher Mulcahy
Vice Captain: Cameron Wise

PATROL 11
Co-Captain: Lance Brooks
Co-Captain: Mark Hughes
Vice Captain: David Livermore
Vice Captain: Daphne Sider

PATROL 12
Captain: Leoni Graham
Vice Captain: Geoffrey Costello
Vice Captain: Lauren Costello

https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=5820105&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=5820105&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=5820105&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=5735923&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=5735923&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=4326140&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=4326140&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=5702367&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=4468976&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=4468976&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=4468976&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=5735658&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=5518327&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=5847059&cw=1
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?MemberID=5847059&cw=1


Proficiencies

Statistics

2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT14

14,802
Total Patrol 

Hours

Award Total

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques 53

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques [AID] 37

Age Manager 33

Assessor Advanced Resuscitation Techniques 2

Assessor Bronze Medallion 6

Assessor IRB 1

Bronze Medallion 469

Endorsed Assessor - Bronze Medallion 2

Endorsed Assessor - IRB 1

Endorsed Delegate  - ART (AID) 2

Endorsed Delegate - Bronze Medallion 2

Endorsed Delegate - Silver Medallion Aquatic Rescue 2

Endorsed Delegate - SRC 9

Facilitator Advanced Resuscitation Techniques 2

Facilitator First Aid 4

Facilitator IRB 1

Facilitator Silver Medallion Aquatic Rescue 1

Facilitator Trainer 1

First Aid 30

Award Total

Gold Medallion (Advanced Lifesaving) 2

IRB Crew Certificate 104

Junior Activities Competition Skills 243

Junior Activities Preliminary Evaluation 182

LMS Access 2

Rescue Water Craft Operator Certificate 3

Silver Medallion Aquatic Rescue 12

Silver Medallion IRB Driver 58

Silver Medallion Patrol Captain 9

SS - Core Official 3

SS - Technical Official  6

Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed) 40

TAF Pre-season Online 2022 1

Training Officer Advanced Resuscitation
Techniques

2

Training Officer Bronze Medallion 16

Training Officer IRB 7

TOTAL 1,348

Type Total

Drowning 0

Fractures/
Dislocation

6

Heart Related 1

Major Marine Stings 7

Major Wounds 4

Minor Cuts/Abrasions 72

Minor Marine Stings 805

Other 9

Shock 1

Spinal 0

Total 905

First Aid Preventative Actions
Type Total

Beach Users Advised/ Warned 117

Craft Users Advised/Warned 98

Lost Children 13

Preventions 981

Searches 5

Shark Alarm 6

Swimmers Advised/Warned 958

Warning Signs Erected 25

Total  2,203

Type Total

No Gear 5

Rescue Tube 4

Body Board 0

Rescue Board 11

IRB 8

RWC 0

ORB 0

RIB 0

JRB 0

Surfboat 0

Helicopter Other 0

Helicopter Winch 0

Surfboard 0

Other 0

Total 28

Rescues

https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?AwardID=1290&season=2024&nonFinancial=0&isProficiency=1&includeNewAwards=0
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/awards/awardAllocationView.php?AwardID=1290&season=2024&nonFinancial=0&isProficiency=1&includeNewAwards=0


Statistics

Membership Statistics 2024/25

Sub-Membership 
Category

Total
Members

Male Female Non-binary
Members

Unknown 
Gender

2023/24
Season

Total
Numbers

Member
Retention 

(%)

Probationary 0 0 0 0 0 10 0%

Junior Activity
Member (5-13 years)

578 312 266 0 0 554 103%

Cadet Member (13-15
years)

34 23 11 0 0 45 75%

Active (15-18 yrs) 62 38 24 0 0 46 134%

Active (18yrs and
over)

346 208 138 0 0 334 104%

Award Member 8 4 4 0 0 12 67%

Reserve Active 8 3 5 0 0 8 100%

Long Service 208 136 72 0 0 192 108%

Past Active 1 0 1 0 0 2 50%

Associate 29 18 11 0 0 34 85%

Life Member 42 39 3 0 0 38 110%

General 3 1 2 0 0 440 1%

Honorary 1 1 0 0 0 7 14%

Leave / Restricted 0 0 0 0 0 2 0%

Community Member 0 0 0 0 0 3 0%

Nipper Parent 465 232 233 0 0 -% -%

Total 1785 1015 770 0 0 1727 103%

Membership Transfers

Outgoing
61.2%

Incoming
38.8%

Junior (5-13yrs)
32.1%

Nipper Parent
26.2%

Active (18yrs+)
19.5%

Long Service
11.7%

Active (15-18yrs)
3.5%

Life Member
2.4%

Cadet (13-15yrs)
1.9%

Award Member
0.4%
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Outstanding Rescues

A mass rescue involving six swimmers in strong rips and deteriorating surf. Swift action, technical IRB
manoeuvres, and coordinated medical care resulted in the safe recovery of all patients, including one in

respiratory distress. A textbook display of teamwork under pressure.

An early morning bluebottle sting emergency involving respiratory distress at Cabbage Tree Bay. Despite
being off-duty, the team administered oxygen, monitored vitals, and managed the scene calmly and

professionally for over an hour until both patients stabilised.

A German tourist was rescued in rough surf at dusk after being swept beyond the break.
Spotting danger from the clubhouse balcony during a private function, the team responded without

hesitation. Cody paddled out through fading light and challenging surf, returning the swimmer safely to shore.
This rescue was recognised as the Northern Beaches Rescue of the Month for March.

RESCUE OF THE YEAR
Saturday 8 March 2025
Off-Duty After-Hours Rescue
Lifesavers involved: Cody Barton, Jai Farrell, Steve Garth

RESCUE OF THE MONTH
Sunday 17 November 2024
Patrol 9
Lifesavers involved: Jane Pender (IRB Driver), Ali Gibson (Crew), Craig
Haskins, Andrew Miller, Nikola Vujovic, Rhani-Lee Payne, Kirsty Dollisson

RESCUE OF THE MONTH
Monday 27 January 2025 
Off-Duty Rescue
Lifesavers involved: Kris Brock (BM), Charlie Brock (SRC), Medwin Wong (SRC)
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Saturday 1 March 2025 
Off-Duty Rescue
Lifesavers involved: Joris Broeders, Kelly Packer, Cormac Barry,
Gerard Kennedy (VC), Michael Studden (PC)

RESCUE OF THE MONTH

A face-down unconscious swimmer was identified and rescued in the flagged area during patrol hours. On his
very first patrol, Joris initiated the rescue. Lifesavers quickly administered oxygen and called for paramedics.

The patient regained consciousness and was transported safely to hospital.
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Let’s take it back to the beginning…

While most people were enjoying a peaceful July, sipping hot chocolates and binge-watching Netflix, we were
kicking off Bronze and SRC courses early and charging full steam ahead. Then September rolled around and
BOOM — proficiencies hit - and so did my annual transformation into a dramatic, sunburnt sergeant with a
passion for punctuality and a voice that could cut through glass... You know, those sessions where we ask you
to become David Hasselhoff and Pamela Anderson, running across the sand, roll around in the surf, and
pretend you're totally not out of breath while doing CPR? Yeah, those. Over 500 proficiencies later, we’re still
unsure how our trainers have functioning limbs — but somehow, we managed to do it. 
And then the courses came flooding in like a 4-foot shore dump at Queenscliff.

This Season’s Stats – aka, Why I’ve Earned a Long Nap:
500+ proficiencies completed (some of you even remembered to bring your high vis!)
3 Bronze Medallion courses
2 SRC courses
2 IRB Crew courses
1 IRB Drivers course
8 First Aid courses
2 ART courses
A handful of keen beans also took on Silver Medallion Aquatic Rescue & Beach Management via branch.

All up, our glorious trainers racked up over 700 hours of course and proficiency attendance, not including the
glorious admin vortex that lives in my inbox. Seriously, the real rescue mission is herding people and chasing
paperwork.

Director of Education

Well, team — we’ve officially reached the finish line of
the 2024/2025 season, and I can safely say: we made it!

No one drowned (in paperwork), CPR manikins only
mildly traumatised us, and yes, I yelled a little bit (okay,

a lot) — but all in the name of excellence and ocean
safety, right?

Rhani-Lee Payne
Director of Education, Chief Training Officer 



Trainers: You’re the Real MVPS
To our tireless, big-hearted, and endlessly patient training team, I cannot thank you enough. Your
commitment, passion, and the countless hours you give up educating and supporting others are nothing short
of inspiring. There are few people more deserving of praise. While the administrative side of things (and
herding everyone!) can be frustrating, the teaching always brings me so much joy. There is something truly
special - even a little magical - about the camaraderie built during a Bronze course. 

Highlights?

Welcoming 70+ new Bronze members to our sandy shores — future patrol legends in the making.
Watching SRCs transform from nervous teens into confident first responders.
Witnessing more teamwork, laughs, and sunscreen slathering than any one season should contain.

What’s Next?

I’m extremely proud that Manly LSC continues to be one of the best-trained clubs on the beaches. The
standard of training we uphold ensures our members are confident and capable on patrol and in any rescue
scenario. I know I push hard on this, especially during proficiencies, and I appreciate everyone’s patience and
commitment to excellence. The effort we all put in truly matters when it counts most. I’m already looking
forward to next season and how we can further improve our courses and systems to make the experience
even better for everyone. 

And yes, I do yell. And yes, I will yell again. But it’s only because I care… and also because it’s the only way to
be heard over the IRB engine and someone asking where their pink rashie went.

Thinking of Becoming a Trainer?
Do it. Seriously. If you’ve ever thought, “Hey, I could teach this stuff,” spoiler: you totally can. Join the training
team! It’s rewarding, it’s fun, and you get a front-row seat to the best rescue fails during simulations (we won’t
name names… yet). 

Thank you all for making this season what it was — busy, brilliant, and full of heart. I am constantly kept on my
toes and usually find myself in bizarre situations… such as pretending to be unconscious while new bronzies
strap me to a spinal board and hang me upside down…. True story! But I wouldn’t have it any other way! So,
thank you all for an epic season. Keep moving, keep laughing, and consider doing a few laps over the winter so
your proficiencies don’t hit too hard next year.

See you on the beach — voice prepped, energy high, and fully prepared to lovingly boss you around.

2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT18

Director of Education
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Lifesaving Awards

30 Year 
Officiating Service
Terence Boardman OAM

15 Year Training
Service Certificate
Benjamin Neighbour

ALS Beach Operations Management ALS Operations Management
Victoria Cuthbert Ben Chalmers

Victoria Cuthbert

5 Year National
Patrol Service
Sophie Egden
Gregory Gardner
Roisin Tumilty

10 Year National
Patrol Service
Gregory Gardner
Jacqueline McLeod
Pamela Walton

20 Year National
Patrol Service
Benjamin Neighbour
Timothy Woolnough

Age Manager
Hayden Cotter
Richard Coulson
Victoria Cuthbert
Andrew Evans
Daniel Fields
Ann-Marie Gibson
Scott Holmes
John Juarez
Antonios Kanis
Catrin Martin
Pierre-Nichola Maizener
Lyanne Thain

Flood Water
Rescue
Ian Buck
James Keene
Bernd krause
David Livermore

ART Online
Hussein Awad
Ian Buck
Rebecca Carmody
John Cunningham
Alison Devlin
Tianna Emmott Bennett
Kyle Halford
Madeleine Hartley
Steven Hunter
Caitlin Jeffries
Anne Kraefft
Deborah Murdoch
Sarah Murdoch
Caroline Raymond
Daphne Sider

UAV Operator 
(non RePL)

Pain 
Management 

Rescue Water 
Craft Operator 
Caitlin Jeffries Caitlin Jeffries

Rebecca Carmody
Alison Devlin

National Medal
Timothy Cuthbert

State Presidents Medal
Ray Petersen

Assessor Advanced
Anthony Tier

Silver Medallion
IRB Driver
Ian Buck
Julian Jackson

Silver Medallion 
Aquatic Rescue
Ian Buck
Ashwin Coburn
Hayden Cotter
Matt Wilkin

Silver Medallion 
Patrol Captain

Geoff Dickson
Nicole Gorton

https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/memberships/membershipEdit.php?MemberID=3650281&action=view
https://surfguard.sls.com.au/_/SLSA_Members/modules/memberships/membershipEdit.php?MemberID=3650281&action=view
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IRB Crew Certificate
Paul Baier
Roland Beck
Aletta Bekouwer
James Bowman
Jason Bowyer
Jacob Chalmers
Charlie Colwell
Richard Coulson
John Craven

Thomas Crofton
Tamila Cunha Melo-
Christian Dandre
Leandro Gama
Jared Gashel 
Melissa Geftakis 
Henry Gorton
Jesse Grazotis
David Haesaert

Lifesaving Awards

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques Provide Advanced Resuscitation
and Oxygen Therapy (HLTAID015)

Provide Advanced First Aid

Jessica Bowman
Steve Buck
Rebecca Carmody
Nicola Wallis Cleary
Ashwin Coburn
Thomas Crawford
Alison Devlin
Ikuyo Feldman
Andre Hamman
Madeleine Hartley
Fiona Hughes

Steven Hunter
Kevin Karp
George Lowndes
Christopher Mulcahy
Sarah Murdoch
Sheen O’Beirne
Jeffrey Parsons
Elizabeth Scherrer
Andrew Thomas
Sacha Wacher
Kathryn Watts
Raymond Wong

Terrence Boardman (OAM) 
Jessica Bowman
Frances Brenchley
Steve Buck
Rebecca Carmody
Ben Chalmers
Nicola Wallis Cleary
Ashwin Coburn
Thomas Crawford
Alison Devlin
Ikuyo Feldman
Emanuel Freer
Andre Hamman
Madeleine Hartley

Robin Barham 
Jessica Bowman
Frances Benchley
Steve Buck
Rebecca Carmody
Lauren Costello
Victoria Cuthbert
Timothy Cuthbert
Geoff Dickson
Iluyo Feldman

Leoni Graham
Madeleine Hartley
Simone Hill
Andrew Hite
David Livermore
Rhani-Lee Payne
Greg Pooley
Nicolaas Venekamp
Medwin Wong

Fiona Hughes
Steven Hunter
Caitlin Jeffries
Kevin Karp
George Lowndes
Christopher Mulcahy
Sarah Murdoch
Sheena O’Beirne
Jeffrey Parsons
Elizabeth Scherrer
Michael Studden
Andrew Thomas
Skye Wacher
Kathryn Watts
Raymond Wong
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Noah Hawkins
Andrew Hite
Patrick Johnson
Marcus Krause
Melanie Lambert
George Lowndes
Ali Malone
Ky Pratt
Emily Ryder

Mewin Wong
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Surf Rescue Certificate

First Aid

Maisy Adams
Catherine Andrews
George Andrews
Florence Bird
Charlie Brock
Esther Callaghan
Peach Callaghan

Daniel Andrews
Finn Argus
Ara Arza
Paul Baier
Diane Barrow
Cormac Barry
Aletta Berkouwer
James Bowman
Joris Broeders
Jacob Chalmers
Marguerite Collins
Charlie Colwell
Amelia Cressey
Thomas Crofton
Thomas Crowe
Ben Cryan
Michael Damm

Daniel Andrews
Alexis Apostolellis
Finn Argus
Ara Arza
Paul Baier
Diane Barrow
Cormac Barry
Roland Beck
James Bowman
Joanne- 
Brigden-Jones
Jacob Chalmers
Hamish Church
Marguerite Collins
Charlie Colwell
Jasmine Costello
Thomas Crawford
Amelia Cressey
Thomas Crofton
Thomas Crowe
Ben Cryan
Tamila Dalila-Cunha-
Melo

Lifesaving Awards

Bronze Medallion

Saxon Goodwin
Taj Hartigan
Ella Hawkins
Callum Hill
Isaac Holt
Isla Jordan
Orla King

Eva Haughton
Noah Hawkins
Mark Hempel
Jose Eugenio- 
Hernandez Ruiz
Andrew Hite
Claire Hocking
James Hocking
Cornelius -
Horrevoets
Ryan Hunter
Benjamin Jackson
Liam Jordan
Tara Kelly
Amy Killoran
Christopher Killoran
Bethany Kings

Alexis Harvey
Eva Haughton
Noah Hawkins
Jose Eugenio -
Hernandez Ruiz
Andrew Hite
Claire Hocking
James Hocking
Cornelius - 
Horrevoets
Robyn Humphrey
Ryan Hunter
Edith Hurt
Benjamin Jackson
Liam Jordan
Tara Kelly
Amy Killoran
Christopher Killoran
Bethany Kings
Nicole Larcombe
Thomas Larcombe
Tracey Leitch

Darcie Chapelow
Joshua Clarke
Charlie Collins
Henry Costello
Evie Davis
Matilda Dillon
William Easton

Ashton Davies
Eleonora De Vos
Nathan Dickson
Tom Emmott- 
Bennett
Matthew Fairfax
Marianne Feoli
Jared Gashel
Melissa Geftakis
Neil Gibson
Jorge Gonzalez
Luka Gordon
Henry Gorton
Jesse Grazotis
Kyle Halford
Ben Hanley
Alexis Harvey

Michael Damm
Ashton Davies
Eleonora De Vos
Nathan Dickson
Tom Emmott- 
Bennett
Matthew Fairfax
Neil Favager
Marianne Feoli
Leandro Gama
Matthew Gardiner
Ella Garrett
Jared Gashel
Melissa Geftakis
Neil Gibson
Joseph Gillespie
Sven Gloor
Jorge Gonzalez
Luka Gordon
Henry Gorton
Jesse Grazotis
Kyle Halford
Andre Hamman
Ben Hanley

Nicholas Kwon
Indigo McIver
Willow McLeod
Samuel Northcote
Tristan Ravesteijn
Melodie Rudner
Hudson Sasikin

Nicole Larcombe
Thomas Larcombe
Tracey Leitch
Jade Lish
James Love
George Lowndes
Vlad Lutschenkow
Ben Manners
Thomas McMurtry
Rex Morris
Keira Morris-Akeroyd
Andrew Newling
Thomas Northcote
Jessica Oakhill
Ryan O’Gorman
Mia Paltridge
Sven Peters

Jade Lish
David Livermore
James Love
George Lowndes
Vlad Lutschenkow
Ben Manners
Kate Martin
Thomas McMurtry
Hayley Miller
Rex Morris
Keira Morris-Akeroyd
Nadia Mulvogue
Thomas Northcote
Jessica Oakhill
Ryan O’Gorman
Kelly-Anne Packer
Mia Paltridge
Colin Panagakis
Jeffrey Parsons
Ky Pratt
Liliana Ructtinger
Oscar Rudner
Emily Ryder

Sebastian Serpetti
Adeline Steiner
Alannah Toouli
Joshua van der-
Reyden
Olivia Wilson
Tobias Woolnough
Jasper Woolston

Ky Pratt
Oscar Rudner
Emily Ryder
Elizabeth Scherrer
Ethan Smith
Joost Speekenbrink
Sophie Stacker
Louise Stevenson
Alex Stoney
Travis Strike
Finley Vaughan
Matt Westcar
Catherine White
Henry Whitehead
Medwin Wong
Vesna Zadnik

Ethan Smith
Lindsay Souter
Joost Speekenbrink
Sophie Stacker
Alex Stoney
Travis Strike
Chris Taylor
Andrew Thomas
Penelope Treadgold
Finley Vaughan
Joe Watkins
Matt Westcar
Catherine White
Henry Whitehead
Medwin Wong
Vesna Zadnik
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The 2024/25 season marked another year of strong engagement and growth for Manly Life Saving Club, with
1,785 financial members contributing to the vibrant culture of our club. Membership retention held firm at
101%, and we proudly welcomed 588 new members into the fold.

This year’s membership included:
·       419 active members keeping our patrols running strong
·       578 junior members (Nippers) are building our future foundation
·       74 general, associate, and life members continuing their valued support

Of particular note was the significant participation uplift in our junior ranks, affirming the success of our
inclusive, family-friendly programs and our club’s reputation as a nurturing ground for the next generation of
lifesavers.

We also saw impressive contributions from our active membership base, with many individuals volunteering
over 50 hours of service. These efforts resulted in 28 rescues and 2,203 preventative actions, helping to keep
Manly Beach safe across the season.

Throughout the year, the membership team focused on streamlining renewals, strengthening onboarding, and
enhancing member communications. Our thanks go to the dedicated registrars, age managers, patrol
captains, and behind-the-scenes administrators who make it all possible. A key goal in the year ahead is
improving active-to-associate retention, keeping members engaged beyond their core patrol years and
creating pathways for community connection, mentoring, and volunteering. Please connect with our
WhatsApp Communities to stay connected in the off-season.

Last year marked our second consecutive year of running the Duke of Edinburgh’s International Award
program at Manly LSC, and it remains a strong and natural fit with the Surf Club, aligning well with our focus
on community service, personal growth, and youth development. The Award encourages young people to
challenge themselves across four key areas—Voluntary Service, Physical Recreation, Skills, and Adventurous
Journey—fostering resilience, leadership, and a sense of civic responsibility. These values reflect the ethos of
surf lifesaving and support our mission to develop confident and capable young members. We currently have
26 participants undertaking the award this year, and we proudly acknowledge the following participants who
completed their Duke of Ed Award: 

Their dedication and achievement reflect the best of our club’s spirit.

Thank you to all our members for your enthusiasm, commitment, and contribution to club life. Whether on
the beach, at events, or behind the scenes, your presence ensures Manly LSC remains a welcoming and
impactful community. See you next season!

Director of Member Services & Youth

Claude Busse
Director Of Member Services & Youth

“We saw impressive contributions from our active
membership base, with many individuals

volunteering over 50 hours of service. These efforts
resulted in 28 rescues and 2,203 preventative

actions, helping to keep Manly Beach safe across
the season”

Bronze
Cai Martin
Dylan Seymour
Hannah Huisman
Kody Burrows
Liam Jordan

Silver
Medwin Wong
Noah Hawkins
Tom Emmott Bennett
Tom Northcote

Gold
Finn McMurtry
India Emmott Bennett
Kalea Lancaster
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Director of Risk

Kenneth Murphy
Director of Risk 

I am pleased to present to you the annual report of the Director of Risk for Manly Surf Lifesaving Club (MSLC)
for the year 2024/2025. The past year has been one of challenges and opportunities, and I am proud to say
that our Club and the management team has risen to meet them.

This year, we saw an increase in beach attendance and participation in Surf Lifesaving activities due to the
easing of COVID-19 restrictions and other factors affecting our operational environment. As a result, there
was a higher number of rescues and first aid incidents compared to previous years (2,973 First Aid events,
12,487 preventative actions, and 37 rescues). However, our volunteer lifesavers responded promptly and
effectively, resulting in minimal injuries and no fatalities. Our risk management strategy has remained
focussed on prevention, education, and preparedness. We have continued to develop a range of programs
and initiatives aimed at improving the safety and wellbeing of our volunteers and MSLC event participants.

The major risks associated with the world’s largest community-based participative sporting event, the Cole
Classic, were once again effectively managed through the development of comprehensive risk assessments,
mitigation strategies and controls. These resulted in a greater number of preventative actions and fewer
incidents requiring rescue or first aid. Developed in consultation with NSW Health, NSW Police, Northern
Beaches Council, Surf Life Saving NSW and other key agencies, these plans ensured the safety of both
participants and volunteers. Similar strategies were applied to the Summer of Surf Event, Nipper Nat’s and
the Manly Open Carnivals. The success and continued financial viability of these events highlight the
extensive work of the organising committees, who are to be congratulated.

The 2024/25 year will see further development in health and safety initiatives for Club members, with an
increased focus on mental health, and exploration of technologies and innovations to enhance safety and
improve operations. Risks associated with requests for assistance—particularly those linked to Surf Life
Saving NSW’s affiliation with the NSW State Emergency Service—will also be a focus. This includes our recent
deployments across the State supporting flood-affected communities, ensuring our members are safe in
these environments. A broader risk assessment across all safety and compliance matters will also be
undertaken in 2024/25, including risks linked to the proposed development and a review of existing security
protocols to ensure a safe working environment for all.

The past year has been pivotal in strengthening our risk management framework. The initiatives undertaken
have not only mitigated existing risks but have also helped prepare the organisation for future challenges. As
we move forward, our commitment to proactive risk management will remain unwavering, ensuring the long-
term success and stability of the Club.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our volunteers, fellow Board Members and partners for their
hard work and dedication over the past year. Your efforts have made a significant contribution to the safety
and wellbeing of our communities.

“Manly LSC’s dedicated volunteers made a
significant contribution to the safety and wellbeing of

our communities, responding to thousands of
incidents with professionalism and care, and ensuring

no fatalities during a year of increased beach
attendance”
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This was my second season as Beach Sports Director and Beach Sprint Captain, and I couldn’t be prouder of
what we’ve achieved together this year. The sense of camaraderie, growth, and good vibes within our team
continues to make this such a rewarding role to be in.

We once again hosted some incredible events at Manly, including Summer of Surf, Beach Stormers, Nipper
Nats and the Rotary Fun Run. 

A huge thank you to our volunteer first aiders who were on hand throughout the season! You are a crucial part
of what makes these events possible. Thankfully, we made it through with only the usual minor sports injuries.
As a gesture of thanks for our support at the Fun Run, Rotary generously donated funds toward a new IRB,
which you’ll see it on the water very soon! A big shoutout to the Rotary Club for their ongoing partnership and
community spirit.

This season we fielded our largest beach competition team in years, and the support, encouragement and
friendships within the group were something special. It’s a joy to see our sand competitors continue to show
up for each other - whether training, racing or cheering on from the sidelines.

Special thanks to our sprint coaches, Mike Kember and Ben Wotton, who go above and beyond during both
the season and off-season. Their dedication is a huge reason for the strength and success of our beach
program.

Thanks to everyone who played a part in making this another standout season. I can’t wait to see what
2025/26 brings.

Director of Beach Sports

“As a gesture of thanks for our support at the
Fun Run, Rotary generously donated funds

toward a new IRB”

Hayley Miller 
Director of Beach Sports
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Manly LSC has a proud history and a very bright future in surf sports competition. The wide-ranging objectives
of our club, contained in our constitution, include:

Being a premier competitive club in surf sports competition at Branch, NSW, Australian and World
Championship competition
To promote lifesaving competition to enhance the objectives of the Club as well as to foster
sportsmanship and values which will, in turn, promote harmony within the Club and its relationship with
the community; and
To encourage Youth and Junior Activity members and their families to remain actively involved in surf
lifesaving after they have finished their youth or junior activity programs.

More than 40% of our members compete in surf sports at Manly LSC. Our surf sports programs provide the
club with a pool of healthy, fit and engaged members, from nippers having their first experiences in the ocean,
to the huge range of members who love keeping fit, improving their skills and hanging out with their friends in
the water, to highly competitive athletes striving for success on a national and international stage.  

2024/25 Surf Sports Season Review 
This has been a season of transition, laying strong foundations for continued success in surf sports
competition at Manly LSC. We increased our competitor numbers across all divisions and achieved an
exceptional retention rate of over 95%. 

We finished 1  at Branch and 2  in NSW across combined points scores for Nippers, Opens and Masters this
season (8% behind Newport’s combined points score), and with North Bondi were one of only two clubs to
achieve a top 10 finish in all three divisions at state championships. At the Australian Championships, we
finished 4  in the Youth category (u13, u14, u15), 24  in the Open category, and 5  in the Masters category.

st nd

th th th

Most importantly, this season, we have successfully addressed a major point of weakness that has
undermined our club’s progress over the last decade, with Manly no longer leaking young talent to other
clubs, and now attracting young surf sports competitors from surrounding clubs once again.  

“Surf sports are a key pillar for Manly LSC to
attract, develop, and retrain the highly skilled

water personnel essential to keeping our
community safe”. 

Director of Water Sports

Grant Ellison
Director of Water Sports



By investing in our coaching programs under the leadership of Scott Thomson and Rachel Crerar and adopting
the approach of “grow our own and make ourselves attractive”, we have returned to being a dominant force in
the younger age groups at Branch, NSW State and Australian Championships level.

Our youth program is now firmly established as one of the leading surf sports programs in the world, with
exceptional retention and conversion into the senior ranks. We have some of the strongest U13, U14, and U15
competitors in Australia and have begun to attract talent from surrounding clubs to be part of what we are
building, with a substantial influx of U15, U17, and U19 competitors transferring to Manly LSC post-season. We
expect to see this translate into very strong results at the U17 and U19 levels in the upcoming season, as well
as beginning to bolster open teams. 

Our master’s program continues to excel, dominating at Branch, finishing 2  at NSW State and 5  at the
Australian Championships. With greater integration between the various sections of the club, from youth
through to opens and into masters, we have created a great training environment that is laying the
foundations for sustained success across all areas of water sports at Manly LSC. 

nd th

Whilst we have substantially increased the number of athletes making open finals at Branch, State, and
Australian national championship levels, our senior team remains in a rebuilding phase. We have a very small
cohort of open athletes currently capable of producing individual medal-winning performances and, in turn,
lifting teams onto the podium at the highest level. Of that small group, at the end of last season, two key
competitors relocated interstate, and several of our key athletes were hindered by injury and illness during
peak events this season. As a result, whilst we made more finals than we have in many seasons, this did not
translate to medals, resulting Opens points scores below expectations at NSW State and Australian
Championships. 

This will resolve as standards continue to lift and broaden across what is now a stable and growing team, and
our talented youth transition through. We are excited to see large numbers of competitors back in training
already for the upcoming season. We are confident we will see a strong progressive lift in points scores over
the coming season as a result of sustained investment in our surf sports program.   

Key season highlights include: 
Outstanding combined nippers, youth, opens, and masters surf sports competition point scores at key
events, showing the health and sustainability of our club overall: 
1  Overall Sydney Northern Beaches Branch Championships st

2  Overall NSW State Championshipsnd

Our Nippers competitors are dominating at the Branch level with more than double the point score of
their nearest rivals, being the top performing club in NSW in water events this season and achieving a
record 4  in water events at the Australian Youth Championships. th

Our Masters team achieved our best results on record, 1  at Branch, 2  at NSW State and 5  at Aussies
this season. 

st nd th

20% increase in Open finalists at Branch, State and Aussies.
Keaten Ronge-Smith and Willem Riddington backing up last year’s u17 ski relay gold medal at Aussies with
an u19 double ski silver medal at Aussies this season.
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Key season highlights cont...
Hayden Cotter winning the World Ocean Series open surf race points score this season.
Henry Whitehead winning the World Ocean Series u15 ironman, board and surf race points score this
season. 
Jake Chalmers 4  in the World Ocean Series u15 surf race, 5  in the ironman, and 8  in the board points
score this season. 

th th th

Elisha Cuthbert winning the U17 Ironwoman at the World Ocean Series Manly Open. 
Henry and Jake Chalmers are being selected for the NSW youth state team.
Willem Riddington being selected in the Australian youth kayak team; and 
Hannah Huisman won two gold medals at the Australian swimming championships. 

Surf Sports Fundraising
Last season, we discussed the significant challenges posed by the rising costs of competing in surf sports,
which have become a significant barrier to involvement for young adults. 
We have addressed this with a Manly LSC Surf Sports Scholarships program now in place. Friends, family,
supporters and sponsors can now make simple tax-deductible donations to support this initiative via the
Australian Sports Foundation (www.asf.org.au), by searching for Manly Surf Sports. 
 
Manly LSC funds surf sports coaching and entry fees, and a partial subsidy for craft transport to Aussies and
other events (in part funded by our athletes paying club competition and coaching fees). The costs borne
directly by our athletes and their families include swim fees, purchase of equipment, travel and
accommodation for an increasing volume of interstate events (Summer of Surf, Aussies, and if selected, Iron
person series and state team events). These costs can range from $5,000 (for limited events) to $20,000 (for
a full campaign) per season per athlete. Any assistance you and your network can provide to help fund these
programs is greatly appreciated.

Help Required
Our focus in the upcoming season will be on building on our high standards in the Nipper and Masters
divisions and substantially improving performance across the senior club, in line with the objectives outlined
in our constitution. We will also look to build momentum towards the world championships in 2026.  
Please reach out if you can help or know someone who can in any of these areas:

Assistance with managing age groups and logistics at U15, U17, and U19 levels at key events
Travel and accommodation organising for Aussies and interstate events for teams of all ages.
Donations via Australian Sports Foundation (www.asf.org.au), by searching for Manly Surf Sports to
support Scholarships for young adults to partially contribute to their costs, and fund more club craft so
athletes don’t always have to buy their own and we can help address club storage constraints.

Congratulations
Congratulations and thank you to our coaches, managers, water safety, volunteers, athletes, their families and
supporters for a fantastic season. Here’s to more success next summer, GO MANLY!

Director of Water Sports

http://www.asf.org.au/
http://www.asf.org.au/
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This season marked my first year as Director of Events, and I’m proud to reflect on what’s been a rewarding
and action-packed year for Manly Life Saving Club:  we successfully delivered three major events – Race One
Nipper Nats, the Shaw and Partners World Ocean Series / Manly Open Surf Classic, and the 43rd Cole Classic
– each showcasing the strength, commitment and teamwork of our club and community. 

Race One Nipper Nats
The Nipper Nats once again provided a fantastic day of competition and camaraderie for U9 to U14 athletes
from across the country. The energy stayed high thanks to the tireless efforts of parents, officials and
volunteers. Thank you to Race One for donating incredible prizes, and to Graham Bruce for his leadership.
Our Manly Nippers thrived under the guidance of Rachel and Michael Kember and their coaching team—
Nipper Nats results were a true reflection of their passion and commitment.

Shaw and Partners World Ocean Series / Manly Open Surf Classic
First held in 1911, the Manly Carnival is one of Australia’s most iconic surf sports events. With generous
support from Shaw and Partners, it’s now a key stop on the World Ocean Series, attracting top Australian
talent and national broadcast coverage. This year brought wild weather, but thanks to rapid coordination
with Council, lifeguards, and officials, we delivered a full weekend of racing. Manly’s unique beach
orientation meant we stayed open while others cancelled. When Freshwater’s carnival was relocated, we
teamed up to run a third day of racing at Manly. Huge credit to our JAC and incredible volunteers who
showed up again and again—especially those on BBQ duty for three days straight!

Director of Events

“Together with our sponsors, partners, and passionate
members, we delivered a season to be proud of—one
that not only showcased surf sports at their best but

brought people together, raised vital funds, and
strengthened our connection with the broader Manly

community”

Andrean Duffy 
Director of Events 



43rd Cole Classic – The World’s Largest Ocean Swim
Another record-breaking year—entries sold out a month early, and smiles were everywhere. With nearly
6,000 participants, the Cole Classic retained its title as the world’s largest ocean swim for the fifth year
running. Shelly Beach gave us a stunning start line, and conditions were ideal for a dream swim into Manly.
A massive thank you to the Cole Classic Organising Committee: Mari Notaris, Mel Brock, Kathryn Watts, Jo
Carmichael, Nick Edmonds, Craig Hood, Ken Murphy, Kate Martin, Madeline Osbon, Nicole Gorton, and race
director John Thomson—you’re the heartbeat of the Cole. To our event partners—Barings, Cadigal, Felons
Manly, Peninsula Orthopaedics, and Speedo—thank you for showing up and pitching in.

Charity Impact:
This year, swimmers raised $265,000, taking our total to over $1.047 million since MSLC took over in 2020.
Closer to home, we raised nearly $200,000 for Manly Life Saving Club—our biggest fundraiser of the year—
directly supporting lifesaving services, training, and equipment.

Sustainability:
We made history with a world-first funded silicone swim cap recycling program, plus biodegradable water
cups, plastic-free tags, food composting, and goggle reuse initiatives. The Cole is now proudly accredited as a
Surfrider Foundation Ocean Friendly Event.

Volunteers:
Behind every great event is a great team. With around 400 volunteers, we delivered a seamless experience.
And those iconic Roger Harvey-designed tees? Still popping up across the peninsula!

Thank You
A heartfelt thanks to every volunteer who rolled up their sleeves this season. Special mentions to Mel Brock,
Rebecca Crawford and Jamie Murrell—my amazing 2ICs at the carnivals—and to Graham Bruce and Glenn
Stone for your trusted guidance.
Together with our sponsors, partners, and passionate members, we delivered a season to be proud of.
I’m looking forward to building on this success—including introducing a new winter ocean swim—and working
alongside you all again next season.

Director of Events

43rd Cole Classic, featuring some Olympians in the mix!
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The 2024/25 Season is over, and we can look back on a year where we performed well across all facets of
competition, but we can do better.

The competition began with the ILS World Championships on the Gold Coast, with a small team attending. The
number of clubs and athletes from across Australia was down, which affected the quality and depth of
athletes attending. The Worlds differ from a normal Australian Carnival in that you can only have so many
competitors per team, and there are limits to the events and athletes that can compete in.

Over the past few years, the competition calendar for the season has steadily grown fuller, with a calendar of
sport-specific events on nearly every weekend between October and April. Previous carnivals that were high
on the agenda of athletes have fallen off the radar, with several clubs and athletes focusing on Tier 1 World
Ocean Series carnivals, as well as State and Aussie carnivals. The same can be said for our Nippers. In the
past, The Sydney Water Series was a must for nippers, but with scheduling and club commitments, the ability
to attend all proves challenging. We are fortunate to have 2 of the biggest carnivals of the season at our
beach, being the Race One Nipper Nats and the Shaw and Partners Manly Open Classic. This year, we teamed
up with NSWSLSA’s Beach Stormers to have the finale at the Manly Open Classic. We are hopeful that this
exposure improves the attendance figures of beach athletes.

Our Open team (15-Open) is smaller than in previous seasons, with several of our older Opens transitioning to
the next stage of their lives, yet still providing leadership to our youth who are moving into the Opens. MLSC
is fortunate in that we have a very large nursery, and over the past 20+ years, they have been exposed to
great coaching and leadership from the JAC committee to help upskill them into being good water people.

Our current batch of U15S is right up there in quality and depth on the competition side, and they are nice
kids. So, the future looks promising. Throughout the season, our U15S have excelled during the WOS, State
and Aussies: Henry Whitehead won the U15 Male Board race and was up the pointy end of results over the
season. Our U15 boys’ Cameron team won silver at the Aussies and dominated that event throughout the
season. Coupled with the depth of the boys and girls across the 14s and 15s, the Sky-Blue cap will be seen a
lot more in the coming years.
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Deputy President - Competition 

“MLSC is fortunate in that we have a very large
nursery, and over the past 20+ years, they have been
exposed to great coaching and leadership from the
JAC committee to help upskill them into being good

water people.”

Graham Bruce ‘Brucie’
Deputy President - Competition 
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One of the main attributes of a great coach and squad is the impression they leave on an individual. We have
all been exposed to people throughout our lives who influence our development as individuals. I am very
proud of our coaches, Scott, Jono, Rach, Mike, Alicia, Kelly, Sophie and Tilla and how they project the quality
and decency that we want our kids to have.

The carnival results will be in the annual report, with a special mention to our Australian U19 Double Ski silver
medallist, Willem Riddington and Keaton Ronge Smith. To win an Open competition medal at The Aussies is
extremely hard, with the conditions for the Opens leading to very close racing. Both Willem and Keaton are
first-year U19S and paced 4  in this event last year as U17S.th

Kenrick Louis competed in the Shaw and Partners Irons Series, it was a different format this season with
athletes knocked out at the completion of a weekend’s events, Kenj was in a very strong position after the
first days racing but strained his calf on day 2 which forced his hand and he had to retire from the days racing
which ultimately meant his end to this year’s series.

Our Masters team had another successful season with a place at 2nd State and 7th at Aussies. In a few weeks’
time, there will be the state conference, which is looking to have masters’ events cover a 10-year age group
instead of the 5-year age grouping as current.

Manly has had a long history in Surf Boats, we now have a sweep and a masters female crew. Dave Maguire,
our boat sweep, has added a men’s reserve crew to his stable, and hopefully, a few more crews will join over
the next few years.

Surf sports competition covers a range of disciplines, there’s something for everyone across beach/
water/boats/lifesaving/surfing/IRB/R&R and first aid. If Manly wants to be competitive across the disciplines,
then we require athletes and parents who want to compete in these events. 

Thank you to our Competition Manager, Glenn Stone, who does the entries for the opens and provides
guidance to Michael Bochner (Masters) and Katie Chalmers (Nippers) and keeps me in check. The Competition
team ticks over with people in the background doing work that a lot of people do not see, thank you to Dave
Robinson, Tommy Garrett, Greg Gordon, Luke Chalmers, Andy Whitehead and all the parents that answer the
call to help move tents, load craft and provide support to the team.
See you all over winter and summer, and let’s see what the 25/26 season holds.

Deputy President - Competition 
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The season started in October with the Coolangatta Gold endurance event.  This is a challenging event that
involves long-distance ski, board paddling, swimming, and running. The long course is a combined 41km, and
the short course is 21km. Manly Masters were represented by several teams, with the Manly Merchandisers
finishing 3  in the Women’s short course and the Manly Legends 5  in the 190+ Male Teams event. The
Coolangatta Gold can be a physically and logistically challenging event. Still, if you’re looking for inspiration
to keep your training going strong through the cold winter months, this event is a great motivator. 

rd th

October brought the inaugural Mona Vale Masters carnival: a small teams event carnival, and concluded with
the prestigious inflatable swan race: It was difficult to figure out who won, with all the splashing (There did
seem to be a lot of cheating, with the rules for inflatable toy competition still under development!).

The Freshwater Masters in November was a reasonably large local carnival featuring competitors from all
over the Sydney region.  We had 46 competitors and won the overall point score easily. Manly won the 110
and 150 Surf teams, the 130 and 150 ski relay, the 110 and 170 board relay and the 110 and 170 Taplin. We
also had a lot of 2  and 3  places, too many to mention. Thanks to Kaija Wall and Simone Hill for officiating.nd rd

 
We competed at a very relaxed and fun carnival at Palm Beach in January 2025. This was also a team-only
event, with a handicapping system that distributes the prizes very generously (followed by a BBQ on the lawn
of the very classy and exclusive Palm Beach Surf Club). 

Branch Champs took place at Newport in February. The conditions can be challenging at Newport, with a
shore-break that can literally ‘break’ things. The entire event was postponed last season, but this year the
Masters events went ahead (although Joe Badaoui and Salli Alderson suffered injuries during their races). Our
overall results were excellent, with Manly a close 2  in the SNB Beach Championships. Manly was 1  in the
SNB Masters Water Championships with 337 points.  This was a dominant win with Freshwater, the next club,
on 198 points. Many thanks to Jocelyn Webb, Kaija Wall, Jan Proudfoot, Geoff Dixon, Michael Kember, Sheena
OBierne and Nina Gordon for officiating. Thanks to Kit Lloyd for doing the IRB shift.

nd st

Masters Report

“The Masters are one of Manly’s greatest assets—
often overlooked, but a powerhouse of skill,

commitment and contribution. From elite results to
officiating and mentoring, they’re deeply woven into
the fabric of the club and deserve to be recognised

and celebrated.”

Michael Bochner
Masters Captain 
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The NSW State Masters Champs were held at North Steyne in March over 2 days. The entire event was in
serious doubt due to the wild weather. Still, as the sun rose on the first day, it presented near-perfect
conditions (we got very lucky - the Nippers States had been held at Shelly Beach only a few days prior
because of the dangerous surf).  Manly was 2  overall in the NSW State masters championships, behind
Bondi. This is an outstanding result that belongs to the entire club, because our Masters team is a diverse
group of people. We have nipper parents, active patrolling members, life members, long service members,
club officers, parents of opens competitors, ex-Olympians and some beginners who did their bronze in 2024.
Most importantly, we have a balanced mix of age and gender. Very few clubs have such a strong and diverse
Masters competition group. Thanks to John Singleton, Nina Gordon and Alan Tier for officiating at State
Masters. 

nd

Aussies were held at North Kirra in late March over 2 days. We had a team of 34 competitors and finished
7 overall.  The event had almost been cancelled because of a cyclone that had caused massive damage to
infrastructure and the foreshore, but by the time the Masters event was held, the conditions were reasonably
good. Aussies is an interesting event due to its sheer scale and the opportunity to race against competitors
from across Australia. Thanks to Nina Gorton, Christine Armour, Bec Crawford, Mel Thomas and Jocelyn Webb
for officiating. 

th

You may have noticed that I mentioned the officials by name in this report. Our entries to carnivals are
restricted by a strictly enforced quota system for officials, generally a 1 to 10 ratio. We were fortunate to
have such generous people willing to spend their day volunteering, allowing us to participate in these events.
We did not need to restrict entry numbers this season, but we may need to in future. 

I worked as an official at the NSW State Championships, so I had a great view of the racing. One of my
proudest moments of the season was watching the Manly Women’s double ski teams dominate their events at
state level. We had six women’s double ski teams, and they all either won their race or came 2  to another
Manly team. Surf Lifesaving has traditionally been a male-dominated movement, and before 1980, females
were not eligible to participate in Nippers. This has had a flow-on effect for the Surf Lifesaving Masters
competition, as women aged over 40 have taken up surf sports later in life. It also explains why there are so
many excellent women surf swimmers but relatively few female ski paddlers: The surf ski is still a
predominantly male-dominated area. Manly has a history of supporting/encouraging/developing women in
surf lifesaving, and it’s part of our culture. The fact that we can field six excellent masters women’s double ski
teams at the NSW Titles should be celebrated. Very few clubs in Australia can do that.

nd

Masters Report
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The Manly Surf Boat Section would like to thank the Manly Life Saving Club Board for their support
throughout the 2024/25 season. Special thanks go to Boat Captain David Simmons for his assistance during
the season.

Moonlighters – Masters Women’s Crew

The 2024/25 season began early for the Moonlighters, with an ambitious training schedule leading into the
World Championships on the Gold Coast. The crew, having trained through winter, earned a gold medal in the
Masters 200s division, beating one of the few international teams from France. It was a major highlight and an
incredible way to kick off the season.
Following Worlds, the crew underwent a few changes, with new members stepping into key seats. Despite this,
the Moonlighters remained committed to the full surf sports calendar and trained consistently. The squad
showed great adaptability, maintaining performance while supporting each other's development.

Throughout the season, the Moonlighters competed at all major carnivals. They secured:
Gold at the ASRL Open (Masters division)
Gold at the Sydney Northern Beaches Branch Championships
Silver at the NSW State Titles
Silver at the Aussies (Australian Surf Life Saving Championships)

As sweep and coach, Dave Maguire led the team through challenging surf conditions, close finishes, and
competitive fields. The consistency of results across major carnivals is a testament to the team's resilience,
fitness, and unity. Whether in the boat or around the club, the Moonlighters set a great example of
competitive and community spirit.

Manly Majestics – Rebuilding Men’s Surf Boat Rowing at Manly

In November 2024, the club saw the formation of the Manly Majestics, the first men’s surf boat crew at Manly
since 2017. Starting with no prior experience, the group responded to an open invitation to “come and try”
rowing and quickly committed to developing into a competitive team.

Under Dave Maguire’s guidance, the Majestics trained up to four mornings a week, progressing from basic
skills in the flat water of Little Manly and Shelly Beach to surf conditions at Manly. Early sessions were filled
with steep learning curves—learning rowing technique, timing, commands, and surf awareness—but the crew
showed remarkable dedication. The team debuted at the Collaroy carnival and went on to race at the Branch
and NSW State Championships. They improved with every race, holding their own against more experienced
and established crews. At State, the Majestics narrowly missed progressing to the semifinals—a major
milestone for such a new team.

Their efforts also had a noticeable impact on the wider club. The return of a men’s crew was warmly received
by the Manly LSC community, with many expressing support both online and in person. Their journey has
sparked interest from additional club members, with a dozen expressing interest in joining the section next
season.

Surf Boat Captain

“From world championship gold to inspiring a new
generation of rowers, Manly LSC’s surf boat crews not

only excelled on the water but strengthened
community spirit and club culture through dedication,

teamwork, and service”

David Maguire
Boat Sweep
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Surf Boat Captain
Off the Water – Equipment, Support & Community

A lot of time and effort went into supporting the boat section off the water. Dave Maguire maintained all
equipment during the season, including stripping and recoating the ‘Tony Dawes’ boat and oars, servicing the
trailer, and transporting boats to carnivals. His behind-the-scenes work was critical to the section’s success.
Both the Moonlighters and Majestics contributed to broader club activities, including fulfilling patrol duties
and volunteering at community events such as the Cole Classic, further strengthening the link between surf
sports and the lifesaving mission of Manly LSC.

Season Achievements at a Glance
Gold – World Championships (Masters 200s)
Gold – ASRL Open (Masters)
Gold – Sydney Northern Beaches Branch
Silver – NSW State Championships
Silver – Aussies
Debut of the Manly Majestics – 1st Men’s Crew since 2017
12+ new prospective members interested in surf rowing for 2025/26

2024/25 Crew Members:
Moonlighters – Masters Women’s Crew:
Kate Munro, Bastien Wallace, Phillipa Lowe, Claire Ward, Christine Armour, Melanie Lambert, Amy Lanza,
Simone Shaw, Sweep & Coach: Dave Maguire

Manly Majestics – Men’s Crew:
Ian Buck, Jarod Isopo, Ben Roberts, Todd Baker, Sweep & Coach: Dave Maguire

The 2024/25 season has been one of success, development, and renewal for the Manly Surf Boat Section.
We’re proud of all athletes and volunteers who contributed, and look forward to even more progress in the
season to come.



ANZAC Day remains one of the most significant and unifying events
in the Manly Life Saving Club calendar, and 2025 was no exception 

Lest we forget
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This year’s commemorations brought together Club members, families, and the broader Manly community to
reflect on service, sacrifice, and the strong ties between surf lifesaving and the Australian Defence Force.
At first light, members gathered on Manly Beach for a moving tradition that started five years ago. 

Just before 6:00 am, 46 lanterns—each representing a Manly LSC or Manly Surf Club member who served and
did not return from WWI or WWII—were placed in the sand. Initially created by our Nippers in 2020, these
hand-decorated lanterns offered a quiet, intimate tribute to the lives behind the history. At 9:00 am, the
Club’s official ANZAC service began, led by Deputy President of Lifesaving, Rebecca Crawford. Her thoughtful
delivery guided attendees through a meaningful service. 

We were honoured to welcome Corporal Dan Richmond, Special Operations Command, as keynote speaker.
His moving address reflected on duty and resilience, and he shared the story of Sapper Frederick Austin
Reynolds—killed at Anzac Cove on 25 April 1915—who, unknown to many until now, was a member of Manly
LSC. 

Junior Club Captains Alanna Toouli and Saxon Goodwin delivered the Prayers of Remembrance with poise,
followed by Club Chaplain Ken Buckley’s Prayer for ANZAC Day.

The Names of the Fallen were read by:
Kirsty Dollisson – WWI (Manly LSC)
Chris Bell – WWII (Manly LSC)
Don Gain – WWI (Manly SC)
Stephen Russell – WWII (Manly SC)

Jupiter Lawson performed The Last Post and The Rouse, and Robert Darke led the Australian National
Anthem.

Each year, our Club’s ANZAC Day commemoration takes on new meaning as we uncover more stories,
strengthen connections, and pass on traditions to the next generation. Thank you to everyone who
contributed and attended. Your presence ensures that the legacy of those who served and the values they
stood for continue to live on in our community.

ANZAC Day 2025

 Tim Cuthbert 
President 



Chaplain

This is my third year as Chaplain at Manly Surf Life Saving Club. We are one
of around 65 surf lifesaving clubs around Australia with a Club Chaplain. 
 
My primary focus has been to get to know members during patrols, whether
walking along the beach and handing out pastries or sandwiches, or simply
saying hello to members on patrol. This has enabled me to understand 

members’ unique needs and establish a level of trust and support when needed. The chaplain’s role
encompasses member wellbeing and pastoral care as needed. This typically involves offering support for
members who have been involved with a beach or surf incident, accident, or traumatic event.I also
completed a Peer Support and Critical Incident Management course with SLSNSW this past season, which
will assist our club with its duty of care for members. We plan to roll out a version of this next surf season to
ensure we support members who are finding life challenging.

Give me a call if you’d like to have a chat! 0418 251 373 – chaplain@manlylsc.com

Ken Buckley
Chaplain

“The chaplain’s role encompasses member wellbeing
and pastoral care as needed”

House Committee Chair

My duty as House Committee Chair is to maintain the running order of our
ageing club. Firstly what I am tasked to do would be impossible without the
complete organisational brilliance of my boss, Leanne O'Neil: My tasks are to 

Tony Bonner AM
House Chair Committee

“Once again, we have all travelled around the sun, and
another AGM is upon us—my congratulations to our

President and the Board for steering our club through
ever-bumpy seas”.
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keep the doors of our club open and lockable, the lights to function, bins being emptied and our
toilets/change room serviceable, and when not, to have them fixed. The cleaners that Leanne has organised
are doing a super job considering the amount of human traffic our club has to endure. want to thank the
Northern Beaches Council for the continued support, which isappreciated. The Manly Lifeguards are also on
my list of thanks: The camaraderie between the clubbies and the lifeguards is of great assistance. 

My thanks again to Leanne and Katrina in the office, who are vital to our club's success going forward. I thank
my usual band of helpers, who I applaud for their assistance when needed: Simon Gillespie, Barry Seymour,
Tom Garrett, Jim Hudson, Fridge, and Ray Moran. The wonderful Jo Redman is also to be thanked for her club
flag repairs. Warren Cardwell is also to be thanked for his continued sponsorship of our flag, again saving us
vital resources. Thank you.

mailto:chaplain@manlylsc.com


I am thrilled to share the incredible success of Manly Nippers this year. Our Nippers have excelled in all
competitions, from SNB carnivals to the prestigious Aussies. This success goes beyond medals and trophies; it
reflects our values of surf awareness, commitment, development, competition, responsibility, inclusiveness,
and fun!

Enthusiasm for being part of Australia's best Nipper club was so high this season that we had OVER 600
registered Nippers! Running our program is a tremendous undertaking, made possible by our amazing
volunteers. Behind every triumphant Nipper is a group of volunteers and supporters who make it all happen.
A huge thank you to our dedicated age managers, vigilant water safety team, and selfless volunteers. Special
thanks to parents who donned multiple hats—from BBQ masters to beach setup crews. Your dedication is
truly appreciated. Behind every Manly Nipper is a village of support. Your vigilance and expertise ensure our
Nippers enjoy the waves with confidence. If you're considering becoming a Bronzie, take the plunge—no prior
skills are needed, just a desire to participate and be with the kids. It’s also a fantastic way to be part of our
lifesaving community. From age managers to officials, IRB crew, and water safety team—you are the heart and
soul of this club. It’s a huge team effort—thank you!

Special thanks to our tent crew—Bernie Burrows, Luke Chalmers, Greg Gordan, Julian Jackson, and Andrew
Whitehead—for enduring tough conditions at Aussies to keep our Nippers dry and sheltered all season.

Thank you, Rex Morris, for the amazing photos that capture our memories and special moments.

Let’s rewind to our epic Sawtell camp—full of laughter, camaraderie, and training. A visitor in the water
reminded us of the humility and respect the ocean demands. We hope to see you there again—it's a great way
for kids and parents to connect and share a passion for the ocean. Huge thanks to the Sawtell committee for
hosting us on their beautiful beach!

Our U8s joined sessions led by our head coaches (Rachel & Michael), helping them prepare for U9s. This
fostered mentorship and camaraderie between older and younger Nippers, a program we plan to continue.
As our Nippers progress to active patrolling members, we’re incredibly proud of our U14s who earned their
Surf Rescue Certificate. Your commitment to surf safety truly embodies the spirit of Manly Nippers.
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Chairman Junior Activities

“The success of our Nipper programme goes beyond
medals and trophies; it reflects our values of surf

awareness, commitment, development, competition,
responsibility, inclusiveness, and fun!”

Matt Westcar
Chairman, JAC
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To our head coaches—Rachel, Michael, and team: Sophie, Kelly, Alicia, Ella, Tilla, Kiahni, and Toby—thank you
for your unwavering dedication. Your ability to make every child feel welcome is what sets you apart. We are
very lucky to have you on board again next season.

To our JAC committee—thank you for making this season exceptional. We'll miss two long-standing members:
Jenni Jordan – Our Treasurer, and so much more. Jenni is the glue that holds everything together and will be
deeply missed.

Kirsty Hawkins – As Education Officer, Kirsty made surf safety skills engaging and inclusive. Her impact has
been lasting, and we are so grateful.

Manly Nippers would not happen without our sponsors: Bennett Boards, 7 News, Bettys Burgers, Aquify
Pools, Harris Farm & BMS Risk Solutions. Your support ensures our program continues to thrive on the best
beach in the world.

With your help, we can provide Nippers with the best training, equipment, and experiences that foster a love
for surf lifesaving.

Here’s to another fantastic year. May the waves be ever in our favour and the sand firm under our feet. Go,
Manly!

Chairman Junior Activities



The 2024/2025 season has been another exceptional year in the Manly Nippers’ journey. Across all age
groups, we’ve seen tremendous growth, enthusiasm, and development in our young lifesavers. It has been
truly inspiring to watch their skills and confidence grow, backed by the unwavering support of our incredible
Coaches, Members, Parents, and Sponsors.
 
Our Water Safety Team once again led by example, not only ensuring safe training sessions and carnivals but
also stepping up with several real rescues throughout the season. A special shout-out goes to our new SRC
members, who embraced their responsibilities and actively contributed to Water Safety during training. It was
equally encouraging to see Nippers showing care and vigilance, looking after each other and the public – a
true reflection of lifesaving values in action.

Progress was evident across the board in both training and competition. Our Nippers’ improved abilities made
the Water Safety role more enjoyable and rewarding. A heartfelt thank you to our coaching team, who
dedicated their time and energy to guide and mentor both competitive and non-competitive participants
alike.
 
This season also welcomed a wave of new parent involvement, with many completing their Bronze Medallion
and others encouraging their children to gain SRC qualifications. Your engagement is essential to the ongoing
success of the Nippers program, and we encourage even more families to get involved next season. With
some of our long-standing Water Safety volunteers soon moving on, now is the perfect time to step up. The
club will be running Bronze Medallion courses again soon – stay tuned for dates.
 
Our IRB crew parents deserve special recognition for their vital work setting up cans and ensuring our beach
operations ran smoothly and safely. With many of these qualified members also nearing the end of their
Nippers involvement, we urge Bronze holders to consider IRB Crew or Driver qualifications.
 
To every parent, coach, Water Safety volunteer, IRB crew member, and supporter – thank you for giving your
time and energy this season. The increase in Bronze Medallion participants is a great sign for the future.
 
Here’s to another fantastic year – we can’t wait to see you all back on the beach in 2025!

Kris Brock
JAC Superintendent

Nipper Superintendent

“This season also welcomed a wave of new parent
involvement, with many completing their Bronze

Medallion and others encouraging their children to gain
SRC qualifications. Your engagement is essential to the

ongoing success of the Nippers program, and we
encourage even more families to get involved next

season”
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Manly Nippers continues to be self-funded while contributing to key expenses of the broader Manly LSC,
including equipment, building maintenance, and storage. We recorded a surplus of $35,086 for the 2024/25
season (2023/24: $51,838), which will be reinvested into the nipper program.

Our main revenue source are Nipper registration fees, which were slightly lower than last season ($61,845 v
$64,190). This trend is consistent with a nationwide decrease in nipper numbers. A portion of this revenue
goes toward SLS capitation charges, covering costs including insurance.

Our main fundraising BBQ contributed a net $24,895 this year. We’re grateful for the continued support from
Harris Farm for our two major event BBQs. Despite significant increased costs for our regular Sunday BBQs
however, they still raised valuable funds.

Our successful training camps have now become a key club fundraiser. The pre-season Sawtell camp and
Manly summer camp delivered a combined profit of $24,245, which goes directly to supporting our expanding
coaching program. This program has grown due to increased participation in training, resulting in higher
coaching and competition entry costs. A big thanks to our coaching team, led by Rachel Crerar and Michael
Kember, and supported by our army of dedicated volunteers.

We also hosted several social events that were mostly self-funded with some club support, helping to
strengthen the inclusive, family-focused culture at Manly Nippers. Highlights included our welcome function,
State dinner, and end-of-season celebration. 

Overall, Manly Nippers continues to strengthen its financial position, enabling future investment in both our
sport and the wider surf life saving community at Manly.
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Jenni Jordan
Nipper Treasurer 

Nipper Treasurer 

“Manly Nippers continues to strengthen its financial
position, enabling future investment in both our sport

and the wider surf life saving community at Manly.”



This season, we welcomed 578 registered Nippers to Manly Surf Life Saving Club. While this number was
slightly lower than last year, we were pleased that registration remained open throughout, reflecting both the
strength of our program and the dedication of our volunteer community. 

Training and Competition 
Among our U9–U14 age groups, more than 125 Nippers chose to join the training and competition team,
showcasing Manly Team’s enthusiasm for surf sports and skill development. Their participation reflects the
high level of engagement and talent within our club. 
Sunday Nippers 
Our season launched with a special U6 introductory session, followed by our first full Sunday Nippers session
in October, which saw over 350 Nippers taking over Manly Beach. 
Volunteer Support and Proficiencies 
Running the Nippers program relies on a huge network of parent volunteers. This includes delivering surf
education, providing water safety, age managers, carnival officials and conducting swim proficiencies—both in
the pool and in the ocean—for nearly 270 children. To streamline the start of the season, we commenced
monthly pool proficiencies in July for the U9–U14 age groups. This early initiative was a success, allowing us
to complete many assessments ahead of time. However, we encourage greater uptake next year to help
reduce pressure on our volunteers during the peak season. Each pool proficiency session requires
approximately 20 hours of volunteer effort alone. 
Camps and Community 
Our Sawtell and Summer Camps continue to be highlights of the Nippers calendar. This season, over 150
participants attended Sawtell and 115 participated in the Summer Camp. For the first time, we had to close
Sawtell registrations early to ensure we maintained the appropriate coach-to-water safety ratios—essential
for delivering a safe, structured, and enjoyable experience for all. 

Acknowledgements 
A heartfelt thank you to everyone who made this season a success—from our qualified Age Managers and
Water Safety personnel, to every parent who helped out with morning teas, packed camp lunches, or stood
over the BBQ at Sunday Nippers. Your time, effort, and spirit make this program possible. We look forward to
another exciting and safe season ahead. 

Katie Helmuth 
Nipper Registrar

Nipper Registrar 

“Throughout the season, we delivered 21 Sunday
sessions, which ran all the way through the 
summer holidays, finishing strong with our 
Club Championships before a celebratory

 end-of-season event in March”
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Sunday, 28 October 2024
The 2024/2025 Nipper season launched in style with a fantastic opening party at the club, with over 140
Nipper families in attendance. Nippers tucked into pizza while listening to motivating speeches from our
newly appointed club captains, Alannah Toouli and Saxon Goodwin, who shared their experiences of what it
means to be a Manly Nipper, along with encouragement for the season ahead. The evening featured a popular
raffle with incredible prizes generously donated by Hugo’s Manly, Manly Skiff Club, Little Pearl Restaurant,
Dripping Wet, Manly Kayaks, Manly Pacific Hotel, Q Station Hotel, Aqua Vitae Day Spa, G Brothers, Betty’s
Burgers, a Nutrimetics hamper from the wonderful Maree Bennett, Aquify Pools, Speedo, Aqua Culture, and
Nespresso. The highlight was the grand prize—a foam nipper board kindly provided by long-term supporters
of Manly surf club, Bennett Boards—which lucky Under-10 Nippers, Frankie & Sid, won. It was fantastic to see
such strong community support as we kicked off the new season!
Sunday, 22 December 2024
What better way to celebrate Christmas in Manly than with a special visit from Santa and his elves on
Christmas Eve? On a bright, sunny morning, after some fun in the surf, Nippers gathered excitedly on the
beach to welcome Santa, who made a memorable arrival aboard an IRB, waving to the crowd. He came
bearing festive treats—lolly bags and soft drinks—and posed for plenty of holiday photos. A joyful start to the
Christmas festivities for all involved!
Sunday, 9 March 2025
The NSW State Dinner was a night of celebration, recognising the accomplishments of our State competitors.
Everyone looked sharp in their State uniforms, kindly donated by Salon Purpose, and awards were presented
to Nippers for their outstanding efforts at the State Championships, under the guidance of our dedicated
coaches, Rachel and Michael. Nippers enjoyed a pizza dinner while adults were treated to delicious catering
by The Wingala Chef. It was a memorable evening full of pride and team spirit.
Sunday, 31 May 2025
We will wrap up the season with our end-of-season awards ceremony at the Manly Surf Club function room.
This special event will honour the incredible performances of our Nippers at club championships and
throughout the year. It’s also an opportunity to show appreciation for our amazing volunteers, whose
contributions make everything possible. A perfect way to close out a successful season and celebrate the
achievements of our young athletes!

Brigette Bankes, Nippers Social Secretary

Nipper Socials 
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Another great season for our manly nippers. We had our largest camp ever at Sawtell, with 150 kids attending.
Our nippers trained hard in the off-season in the cold weather and were ready to start the season on a high.
We had a big contingent attend Forster, and this momentum continued throughout the season. 

We had over 50 per cent of the inter-branch team being Manly LSC  nippers and youth competitors. 

Having our U8 program proceed this season with large numbers attending throughout the year was great to
see. This program is proving to be successful with our largest U9 team to attend Nipper Nats, branch and
state in a very long time. 

Our nippers worked hard this season to secure 1st place at Nipper Nats, Branch, and a third place at the
SLSNSW state titles. We had several children making state finals and medaling individually. A special mention
to the U13 girls board relay (Tammy Lucy and Evey) who remain undefeated at state titles since U9S. There
was a number of other outstanding results from many of our competitors at state with the following coming
home with individual medals in the water Lucia (u9) , Sol (u9) , JJ (u11) , Millie (u12) Summer (u12) , Tammy
(u13), Charlie (u14) , Alannah (u14). 

We also had our largest youth team attend Aussies (Nationals), with many individuals advancing to the finals.
Unfortunately, State and Aussies were unable to run a full water program, but our nippers didn’t let that stop
them and raced hard in all the events that they could contend in. Our U13 girls came away with a bronze
medal and our U14 boys a silver medal in the Cameron relay. 

Thank you to my dedicated coaching team, Sophie, Alicia, Kelly, Kiahni, Tilla and Ella,  plus all our junior
coaches who helped make this season a success. We all look forward to the 2025/26 season. 

Junior Water Coaching

Rachael Crerar
Head Coach, Water

“Our nippers worked hard this season to secure 1st
place at Nipper Nats, Branch, and a third place at

the SLSNSW state titles”.
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The weekly training schedule saw the Nippers down at Manly Oval on a Wednesday afternoon and on the
beach on a Sunday morning. These sessions focused on developing sprinting, flag, and relay skills for the
athletes. A big thank you to Toby Woolnough for coaching throughout the season at all sessions. It was very
pleasing to see that the development of athletes extended not only to nippers regularly competing in beach
events, but also to water competitors, helping them with finishes and transitions.

At the beach carnivals throughout the year, the sky blue cap could be seen in all age groups and lots of
finals. It was great to see the Manly Nippers competing at branch, state and national carnivals. 
At the Nationals at Kirra Beach, we had competitors in the U/13 and U/14 events, with several finalists.
Congratulations to Josh Clark (U/14 Boys), silver in the beach flags, and Milo Westcar (U/13 Boys), silver in
the 2km beach run. Congratulations to the following athletes who made National finals: 

-       4  U/14 Male Beach Relay (Saxon Goodwin, Felix Stephens, Caden Badstue, Josh Clark)th

-       6  Josh Clark (U/14 Male Sprint)th

-       6  U/14 Mixed Beach Relay (Caden Badstue, Josh Clark, Harper Roberts, Orla King)th

-       9  Caden Badstue (U/14 Male Flags)th

At the State championships held along our own stretch of beach at Queenscliff and North Steyne, the
number of nippers competing in beach events increased from previous years. Congratulations to all Manly
athletes who put their foot on the line, and below is a list of our state beach finalists:

-      2  – Riley Gashel (U/10 Male Beach Flags)nd

-      2  – U/11 Male Beach Relay (Felix Greig, JJ Ranatawake, David Huisman, Owen Snell)nd

-      2  – U/14 Mixed 2 x 1km Relay (Alannah Toouli, Felix Stephens)nd

-      3  – Josh Clark (U/14 Male Beach Sprint)rd

-      3  – Milo Westcar (U/13 Male 2km Run)rd

-      3  – U/9 Mixed Beach Relay (Lucas Dotta, Solomon Eames, Lucia Dillon, Zara Woolston)rd

At the Branch Championships held at Newport, there were exceptional results across all disciplines. The
Manly beach team finished 2  overall in the beach point score, with an incredible 32 podium finishes!! nd

Thank you to the committee, age managers, parents, and athletes for the support to the whole coaching team
this season, and well done to all nippers on a fantastic season.

Michael Kember
Nippers Beach Coach

Junior Beach Coaching
“An excellent season for the Manly Nippers on the beach

track and in the flag pits. The numbers at training
continued to grow, and it was encouraging to see a large

number of U/13 and U/14S attending, which hopefully
bodes well for the senior club 

in a few years. These high numbers resulted in consistent
performance at training and 

excellent results at all beach carnivals”.



2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT46 2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT

What a truly remarkable Nipper's season we've had with our Under 6s! All the Age Managers are bursting with
pride at the progress of our little Nippers. We were blessed with magical weather after what seemed like years
of rain and shared countless fun times together. Throughout the season, our Nippers have grown in surf
awareness, confidence, speed, and agility.

We kicked off the season with ample beach and water exposure and continually added new activities. Staple
activities included flags, obstacle courses, wading (which got deeper each week), and fetch/buckets and ball
games. A weekly highlight was the tug of war, where our Nippers consistently triumphed over the parents,
maintaining an undefeated streak.

There are many people to thank for their contributions to the community and our kids during the 2024/25
season. First and foremost, thank you to all the parents for your efforts in getting our Nippers to the beach
every Sunday, always brimming with positive energy and enthusiasm. Your persistence is greatly appreciated!
It was heartwarming to see an increasing number of parents involved, both on the beach and in the water, as
the season progressed.

A huge thanks to our U6 Age Managers: Amy Woolston, Lyanna Thain, Richard Coulsn, Pierre Maizcner, James
Hocking & Nick Skvlpndel for their support throughout the season. The season wouldn't have flowed as
smoothly without the help of our weekly volunteers. A MASSIVE THANK YOU to each and every one of you
who helped out.

We are incredibly proud of our Nippers who showed up each week ready to give their best—you displayed
bravery as you tried new things, developed your skills, and had a lot of fun on the beach.
Bring on the U7s! We look forward to seeing many of you later this year.

See you between the red & yellow flags!

Under 6s

Matt Westcar
U6 Interim Age Manager 

“Throughout the season, our U6 Nippers have grown in
surf awareness, confidence, speed, and agility”.
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What a brilliant Nippers season the Under 7’s Nippers have had this year. 

All the Age managers are so proud of the Nippers and what they achieved throughout the season. We were
fortunate to have some wonderful sunny Sunday mornings.  
We started the season with plenty of beach and water exposure and continually added more activities as they
built their confidence. Some of the standard activities include flags, the obstacle course, wading, fetching
buckets and ball games. Early on in the season, led by Scott we introduced boards and this quickly became
the weekly highlight with all Nippers being brave, having a go and lots of big smiles (often wonderfully
captured by Rex). 

There are plenty of people to thank for their contributions this season, the community and the Nippers.
Firstly, to all the parents and carers - we appreciate your efforts in getting the Nippers to the beach every
Sunday with plenty of positive energy, enthusiasm and getting stuck in. It was great to see many familiar faces
from last year and to see so many parents getting more involved, volunteering in various capacities, including
on the sand, in the water, at the barbecue, and providing general support.  
We continue to owe a huge thanks to Matt, Katie, Chiara and the broader team for their support and guidance
behind the scenes, keeping everyone informed and updated throughout the season. 

And finally, a massive thank you to the great team of Age Managers this season: Scott, Arlen, Chris, George
and Chris as well as the broader team Amy, Kate, Kat, Serene, Mel and Chez. We were also fortunate to have
Izzy, our Duke of Edinburgh student who was a pleasure to work with and the Nippers loved her. Without all of
you the season wouldn't have been possible.  

Bring on U8’s, we look forward to seeing many of you later this year to continue to build their skills,
confidence and enjoying Sundays at the beach.  

See you between the yellow and red flags. 

Under 7s

“Over the season, the U7 Nippers continued to 
build on their surf awareness, confidence and 

agility they developed last year - all while 
continuing to have fun and develop friendships. 

It was so good to see their confidence and development
throughout the season.”

Keri Jacka
U7 Age Manager
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As we look ahead to the next chapter, we can't help but be excited about the adventures that await. Get ready
for even bigger waves, improved skills, testing ourselves in competition, and memories that will last a lifetime
as we continue our journey at the Manly LSC snd between the red and yellow flags! 

Looking back on the season, it’s amazing to see just how far our U8 Nippers have come. From the very first
session, we filled our time with beach and water activities that helped build their confidence, surf awareness,
and agility. Whether practising our sprints, mastering the flags, or taking on deeper waters with increased skill
on the boards, each week they tackled challenges with energy and a positive attitude. 

We can't wait for what’s to come as we move into U9s! This upcoming season is going to be packed with more
fun, growth, and unforgettable moments. We’re eager to see how our Nippers continue to evolve, ready to
take on competition, longer runs, swims and flags and new challenges with the same enthusiasm and grit
they’ve shown so far. 

We owe a huge thank you to everyone who made this season such a success. Our appreciation goes to the
amazing parents whose unwavering support and enthusiasm made sure our Nippers were always ready for
action each Sunday. Your positive energy is contagious, and it has encouraged even more families to join in
the fun. 

A special thank you to Matty Westcar, the JAC team and Jaclyn. And of course, we can't forget the incredible
volunteers who gave their time and energy week after week to keep the spirit of Nippers alive. 
A shoutout goes to our exceptional U8 age managers and volunteers: Neil, Ali, Antonios, Scott H, Mitch, Greg
and Luis. Your dedication and support have been the foundation of this unforgettable experience, creating
lasting memories for our Nippers and their families. 

To our brave and adventurous Nippers, your progress this season has been inspiring. We are so proud of
everything you’ve achieved and the determination you've shown. Showing up and giving it all are great
attributes to build upon for life. We look forward to seeing you continue to grow and thrive in the next chapter
of your Nippers journey. See you on the sand!

Dom Smith
U8 Age Manager

Under 8s

“What a truly incredible season we've had with our
U8S. The energy, enthusiasm, and growth of our
little Nippers have filled us with immense pride”
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This season marked a milestone for the Under 9 Nippers as they successfully completed their pool and ocean
swim proficiencies and embarked on their first year of competitive carnivals alongside Sunday nippers and
regular weekly training in board paddling, swimming, and beach sprint and flags. 

These efforts translated into outstanding achievements at club championships and across carnivals, including
Branch and the recent State Championships. Our nippers secured numerous podiums in flags, sprints, board
races, surf swims, and relay events. These successes were a testament to their resilience in tackling
challenging surf conditions and their eagerness to improve. 

Behind the scenes, this season’s success was made possible by an incredible team of parents and age
managers who generously gave their time to support every aspect of the program. A special thank you to
Claire for her stellar organisation and communication, as well as Charlie and Daniel for keeping Sunday
sessions running smoothly when many of us were at carnivals. 

Perhaps the most rewarding part of the season has been watching the wonderful friendships that have
formed among the nippers. These bonds, built on shared experiences and a love of the surf, have truly been
the highlight of the year. 

The camaraderie and dedication displayed by our nippers, families, and volunteers have been the foundation
of this season’s achievements. We look forward to seeing what next season brings for this talented group of
young lifesavers!          

Robbie Begg & Chris Jacka
U9 Age Managers 

Under 9s

“Over 30 U9 nippers stepped up and competed at
carnivals across the season, while another 25+ regularly
attended Sunday sessions to hone their skills and build

confidence in surf, sand, and water”. 



The season started back in September up in 'sunny' Sawtell, with a few days of intensive training, plus a few
parent sessions, and then we finished with State Champs in March - what a year we had! 

The year doesn't happen without a huge amount of time and co-ordination by many people, my thanks (not all
by name, nor in a specific order) go to Amy our BBQ Queen and her band of helpers - the BBQ is a key fund
raiser for the club and the option for many to contribute their time.

To Jackie for your assistance across the logistics for each Sunday, getting the kids checked in, reviewing those
who were or were still to become proficient -code for keeping your child and all the others safe.

To the older Nippers who provided water safety - the kids look up to you so thanks for remembering where
you came from.

To my fellow age managers, thanks for fronting up each Sunday, ensuring that we were able to put on a fun
training session.

To the club admin for the tools, Ben and Kristy for training guidance and support and P3 for that Sunday
morning where I took the kids up to the tent - lots of excitement around the hemorrhage kit....

Lastly, to the Nippers, THANK YOU for coming along, giving it your best and supporting each other from those
that took a few attempts to get through proficiency to Riely and a Silver medal at State - you all improved, and
I'm proud of the steps you took.

See you on the beach.
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Lee Palmer
U10 Age Manager

Under 10s

“Over the summer of 24/25 I saw 45 incredible
young people develop and improve their surf skills

and confidence”.
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The Manly U11 Nippers has wrapped up an outstanding season, marked by significant progress and
commendable achievements. This year was particularly special as the group transitioned to fibreglass boards,
a big step in their surf lifesaving journey. Despite the initial challenge of adapting to the new equipment, the
Nippers displayed remarkable resilience and determination, quickly mastering the techniques required to
handle the boards with confidence and skill.

Adding to the excitement, the season introduced new events, including board rescue, which proved to be a
fantastic opportunity for the Nippers to showcase their teamwork and lifesaving abilities. The enthusiasm and
commitment shown by the young athletes were evident in both training sessions and competitive events, as
they embraced the new challenges with vigour.

Throughout the season, the team’s performance was consistently strong, with notable improvements in
speed, agility, and confidence both on the water and on the beach. Their dedication was reflected in
impressive results at surf carnivals, where they not only competed fiercely but also demonstrated exemplary
sportspersonship and team spirit.

The success of the Manly U11 Nippers this season is a testament to their hard work, the support of dedicated
coaches, and the encouragement from families and the broader surf lifesaving community. As they look
forward to the next season, the Nippers carry with them the skills, friendships, and experiences that will
undoubtedly shape their future in surf lifesaving.

Under 11s

Jamie Murrell
U11 Age Manager

“A Season of Growth, Fun and Achievement”



The Manly U12s class of 24/25 saw a great mix of boys and girls, with lots of familiar faces mixed with some
new ones as well. The group’s confidence in all conditions continues to grow, as does it seem their
cheekiness! 
Branch was again a sea of Manly sky blue. After one postponement, the kids were able to get going, up once
more against the infamous Newport shorebreak! There were only 2 events across the entire water program
between the girls and boys where they didn’t take gold, and only two more where they didn’t have at least 2
out of 3 podium positions! Taking 1 , 2  and 3  in the boys Board Relay shows how much our kids are
challenging each other (and the coaches!) for team selections!

st nd rd

 
It wouldn’t be a State competition without some curveball being thrown in, and so it proved again this year! A
shortened program, with a single day of competition split into a boys and girls half, threw new challenges at
our nippers. Four events run on flatwater, run back-to-back, tested our nippers competition strategies, fitness
and energy reserves! For some it meant 10+ heats over just a few hours! Despite the challenges, all the Manly
competitors showed great resilience. Our boys making finals and going ever so close to podium finishes, while
our girls were able to take it one step further with no less than 5 podium finishes, 3 being gold (2 individual, 1
team)! Despite not wanting to single out competitors, Millie Gaudrey’s golden day out was something special!
 
More than the results however, our U12s have done the Manly club (and their parents!) proud by the way
they’ve conducted themselves this season. They’ve welcomed new members with open arms. And because
the ocean is the ocean, the challenges have been plenty! But, whether it be Sunday Nippers, or the many
Competition days, they continue to show great camaraderie and sportsmanship, helping each other to new
levels of confidence, competing hard but fair, and being there in support for their friends when help and
encouragement is needed.
It’s always hard singling out people, but a special thanks to the Jacksons, the Eastons, the Woolnoughs, Susan
Allison and Grant Ellison for all their help on the beach through the season, and the BBQers (and organisers!)
when it’s been our turn. Big thanks to the other Age Manager’s also, helping to cover the U12s when we’ve
been down on numbers! Thanks as always to our high-quality coaching group - our competing kids results
haven’t happened by chance! And finally the JAC who put so much effort in behind the scenes to make each
season possible. It takes a village to raise (control?) our nippers, and in that regard, we’re blessed!
Bring on next season!
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Under 12s

Luke McLeod 
U12 Age Manager

“The U12s continue to show great camaraderie and
sportsmanship, helping each other to new levels of

confidence”



What an incredible season we’ve had with our U13 kids and their families! It was wonderful to welcome new
faces while many familiar ones returned for another fun year. We were excited to see more girls than boys in
this age group!

This year was packed with carnivals, and our U13s represented the club like champions! They showcased their
strength in both beach and water events, with many travelling to the Central and South Coasts to compete. A
big shoutout to the parents for their early mornings and long drives!

At the Branch Championships, our kids excelled, bringing home a fantastic haul of medals. The State
Championships at Queenscliff presented some challenges due to tough water conditions, which meant we
had to wait until Sunday to compete at Collaroy. The results were impressive, and all the Nippers who
participated should be incredibly proud of their efforts both on the beach and in the water!

This year, the U13s had a great opportunity to compete in their first Australian Surf Life Saving Titles on the
Gold Coast. Unfortunately, the conditions were again challenging, leading to the cancellation of some events.
However, there were still some races: a few of the kids came home with medals in individual and team events,
which highlights the competitiveness of this age group and reflects the dedication and hard work they put
into their training throughout the year.

A heartfelt thank you to all the parents who helped out on Sundays, whether it was on the BBQ, providing
water safety, or serving as Age Managers. Your support is essential in making the season enjoyable for
everyone.

As we look ahead to next season, we hope all our Nippers continue to learn and grow within the Surf Life
Saving community. It’s a fantastic group to be part of, and we can’t wait to see everyone build their skills in
what will be their final year in Manly Nippers!
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Mark Seymour
U13 Age Managers

Under 13s

“Our Sunday Nippers sessions were the highlight of
the summer, buzzing with energy and enthusiasm.

The kids put in a lot of effort to develop their
lifesaving skills, and it was fantastic to see our new

Nippers giving it their all each week”.



The 2024/2025 season marked a memorable final chapter for our U14 Nippers as they concluded their junior
surf lifesaving journey with enthusiasm, camaraderie, and impressive development. 
Throughout the season, the group demonstrated energy and focus in both training and competition. Their
skills in surf awareness, board paddling, swimming, and beach events continued to evolve, with many showing
readiness for the transition to up-and-comers and looking forward to getting on the Ski! Participation
remained strong across weekly sessions, carnivals, and special events, reflecting the group's dedication and
team spirit.

Alannah Toouli and Saxon Goodwin were selected as club captains, exemplifying the calibre and character of
this exceptional group. One of my favourite parts of being a U14 age manager is giving back to the club, and
this year was no exception. The U14s played a pivotal role in mentoring younger age groups, often stepping up
to assist age managers and support club activities. The group’s mentorship extended to organising
community events, including the beloved Santa Visit, where U14s created magical moments for younger
members and their families. Their leadership and positive attitude were evident in their interactions on the
beach, helping foster a welcoming and inclusive environment for all Nippers.

Carnival performances were a highlight, with several standout individual and team results showcasing the
depth of talent in the group. Whether in the surf or on the sand, the U14s consistently demonstrated
sportsmanship, resilience, and pride in representing Manly LSC. Special call out to Joshua Clark for his Silver
in Flags at Aussies! 
This remarkable journey was supported by dedicated volunteers, coaches, and families whose tireless efforts
created an environment where young lifesavers could flourish, forge lifelong friendships, and develop into
confident guardians of our beaches and community, a huge thank you to everyone who supported the u14s
this year and especially to Kate Adams my partner in Crime.

As our Nippers prepare to move into the next phase of their lifesaving journey, we thank them for their
contributions and celebrate their achievements. Their growth over the years has been inspiring, and we look
forward to seeing many of them continue in the senior club, as patrolling members, and future leaders of our
club.
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Pete Hawkins & Kate Adams
U14 Age Manager(s)

Under 14s

“It was incredible to have 33 Nippers return and spend
time on the beach building on the strong foundations

laid in previous years, this cohort demonstrated
maturity, leadership, and a deepening commitment to

surf lifesaving values”



PRESIDENTS AWARD Kirsty Dollison

JUNIOR CLUB PERSON  Lauren Costello

CADET CLUB PERSON Henry Gorton

SENIOR CLUB PERSON Ken Buckley

ROOKIE OF THE YEAR Nicola Cleary

PATROL PERSON OF THE YEAR Richard Elliot

PATROL CAPTAIN OF THE YEAR Julian Clarkson

PATROL OF THE YEAR Patrol 2

VOLUNTEER OF THE YEAR Geoff Dickson

IRB PERSON OF THE YEAR Jarrod Isopo

THE TOBY WALLACE INSTRUCTOR OF THE YEAR Jessica Bowman

THE JACK THOMAS TAF ALL ROUNDER Tim Cuthbert and Julian Clarkson

RAY LEIGHTON INSPIRATIONAL  John Platt

UNDER 15 COMPETITOR OF THE YEAR Henry Whitehead

UNDER 17 COMPETITOR OF THE YEAR Elisha Cuthbert

UNDER 19 COMPETITOR OF THE YEAR Keaton Ronge Smith

SENIOR COMPETITOR OF THE YEAR Hayden Cotter

MASTERS COMPETITOR OF THE YEAR Julia Bell

MAX RIDDINGTON TEAM OF THE YEAR
U15 Male Cameron Relay - Jacob Chalmers, Henry
Whitehead, Thomas McMurtry, Dylan Seymour, Felix
Stephens.

BOAT CREW OF THE YEAR
Manly Moonlighters - Kate Munro, Amy Lanza, Bastien
Wallace, Christine Armour, Simone Shaw, David
McGuire (sweep).

RESCUE OF THE YEAR Cody Barton and Jai Farrell
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Annual Awards

100% Patrol Attendance
Patrolling members who have completed 100% of their own rostered patrols during the season

Jane Pender  
Andrew Geddes  
Kevin Karp  
Peter Turnbull  
Errol Woodbury  
Alistair Gibson  

Claude Busse  
Julian Clarkson  
Nicola Cleary
Geoff Dickson  
Nathan Dickson  
Tim Ettle  

Linda Goodwin  
Rhani-Lee Payne  
John Zdrilic  
Kit Lloyd  
Lauren Costello  
Colin Panagakis
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Annual Presentation Night



Carnival Results

Under 9
1st Female Board Race Lucia Dillon

2nd Male Surf Race Soloman Eames

3rd Female Surf Race Lucia Dillon

3rd Male Board Relay Taigh Fallon, Soloman Eames, Dylan Kelly

3rd Mixed Beach Relay
Lucas Dotta, Soloman Eames, Lucia Dillon, 
Zara Woolston

Under 10
2nd Male Flags Riley Gashel

Under 11
1st Male Surf Race Joseva Ranatawake

1st Male Iron Joseva Ranatawake

2nd Male Beach Relay
Felix Greig, Joseva Ranatawake, David Huisman,
Owen Snell

Under 12
1st Female Iron Millie Gaudry

1st Female Board Race Millie Gaudry

1st Female Board Relay Summer Easton, Millie Gaudry, Alice Woolnough

2nd Female Board Race Summer Easton

3rd Female Surf Race Millie Gaudry

Under 13
1st Female Board Relay Eve Seymour, Lucy Whitehead, Tamzin Woolston

1st Female Board Race Tamzin Woolston

3rd Female Surf Race Lily Lutschenkow

3rd Male Board Relay Ryan Chalmers, Sasha Gordon, Milo Westcar

3rd Male 1km/2km Milo Westcar

Under 14
2nd Female Surf Race Charlie Collins

2nd Female Board Race Alannah Toouli

2nd Male Board Relay William Easton, Saxon Goodwin, Felix Stephens

2nd Mixed 1km/2km Relay Felix Stephens, Alannah Toouli 

3rd Female Board Relay Charlie Collins, Alannah Toouli, Isla Jordan

3rd Male Beach Sprint Joshua Clark

State Championships
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Carnival Results

Under 15
1st Male Ironperson Henry Whitehead

1st Male Board Race Henry Whitehead

1st Male Cameron Relay
Jacob Chalmers, Dylan Seymour, 
Henry Whitehead, Thomas McMurtry

1st Male Board Rescue Jacob Chalmers, Henry Whitehead

1st Male Surf Race Henry Whitehead

2nd Male Surf Race Jake Chalmers

2nd Male Surf Team
Jacob Chalmers, Thomas McMurtry, 
Kody Burrows, Henry Whitehead

3rd Male Board Race Kody Burrows

3rd Male Board Relay Kody Burrows, Jacob Chalmers, Henry Whitehead

Under 19
3rd Male 2km Beach Run Finn McMurtry

Opens

3rd Male Surf Team
Hayden Cotter, Kendrick Louis, 
Andrew Newling, Kyan Winn

State Championships
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Masters
1st 30-34 yrs Female Board Race Rachel Crerar

1st 45-49 yrs Female Board Race Julia Bell

1st 40-44 yrs Female Beach Flags Kirsty Hawkins

1st 35-39 yrs Male Beach Sprint Michael Kemper

1st 170 yrs Male Single Ski Relay Chris Morgan, Michael McGrath, Grant Ellison

1st 45-49 yrs Female Single Ski Julia Bell

1st 50-54 yrs Female Single Ski Melanie-Jane Brock

1st 40-44 Female Board Race Jenna McDonald

2nd 30-34 yrs Male Surf Race Liam A Kelly

2nd 70-74 yrs Male Surf Race John Platt

2nd 30-34 Male Board Race Liam A Kelly

2nd 45-49 yrs Female Board Race Melinda Kelly

2nd 35-39 yrs Male Beach Flags Michael Kemper

2nd 60-64 yrs Female Beach Sprint Merrilee Lineära

2nd 45-49 yrs Female Single Ski Melinda Pelly

2nd 30-34 yrs Female Single Ski Rachel Crerar

2nd 45-49 yrs Male Single Ski Robin Bell

2nd 35-39 yrs Male Single Ski Andrew Miller

2nd 60-64 yrs Male Beach Sprint Nigel Kassulke

3rd 40-44 yrs Female Beach Sprint Kirsty Hawkins 

3rd 60-64 yrs Female Beach Flags Merrilee Linegar 

3rd 110 yrs Male Single Ski Relay
David Candle, Ronnie Dalsgaard, 
Benjamin Neighbour

3rd 60-64 yrs Male Single Ski Michael McGrath

State Championships



Masters
1st 35-39 yrs Female Double Ski Melinda Pelly, Eleonora De Vos

1st 50-54 yrs Female Double Ski Jo-Anne Carmichael, Rebecca Crawford

1st 45-49 yrs Female Rescue Tube Julia Bell

1st 45-49 yrs Female Double Ski Julia Bell, Melanie-Jane Brock

1st 70-74 yrs Male Ironperson John Platt

1st 45-49 yrs Female Board Rescue Julia Bell, Melinda Pelly

1st 40+ Female Ironperson Julia Bell

1st 110 130 Female Ski Relay Julia Bell, Melanie-Jane Brock, Rachel Crerar

1st 70-74 yrs Male Rescue Tube Neil Schafer

2nd 45-49 yrs Female Double Ski Hillary Ingle, Georgina Pelly

2nd 30-34 yrs Female Double Ski Rachel Crerar, Florence Epper

2nd 55-59 yrs Female Rescue Tube Hilary Ingle

2nd 170 yrs Male Taplin Raymond Ingle, Chris Morgan, Nicholas Williams

2nd 110 yrs Female Taplin Julia Bell, Rachel Crerar, Jenna McDonald

2nd 130 yrs Female Taplin Melanie-Jane Brock, Florence Epper, Melinda Kelly

2nd 110 yrs Female Board Relay Julia Bell, Rachel Crerar, Jenna McDonald

2nd 150 yrs Female Board Relay Melinda Pelly, Melanie-Jane Brock, Nicole Gorton

2nd 60-64 yrs Male 1km Beach Run Michael Bochner

2nd 30-34 yrs Male Ironperson Liam A Kelly

2nd 70-74 yrs Male Board Rescue John Platt, Neil Schafer

2nd 30-34 yrs Female Board Rescue Rachel Crerar, Jenna McDonald

2nd 200 yrs Female Surf Boat Manly LSC Moonlighters

2nd 30+ Female Ironperson Rachel Crerar

2nd 55-59 yrs Female Board Relay Jo-Anne Carmichael, Hilary Ingle

3rd 55-59 yrs Male Double Ski Antony Gilbert, Raymond Ingle

3rd 40-44 yrs Male Double Ski David Cansdell, James Stewart

3rd 50-54 yrs Male Double Ski Grant Ellison, Nicholas Williams

3rd 200 yrs Male Beach Relay
Lance Brooks, Barrie Feldman, Nigel Kassulke,
Michael Kember

3rd 150 yrs Female Taplin Jo-Anne Carmichael, Eleonora De Vos, Nicole Gorton

3rd 50-54 yrs Female Board Rescue Melanie-Jane Brock, Nicole Gorton

3rd 55-59 yrs Male Board Rescue Raymond Ingle, Chris Morgan

3rd 35-39 yrs Female 2km Beach Run Sophia Tremenheere

3rd 30+ Female Surf Rachel Crerar

3rd 110 130 Female Surf Team Melanie-Jane Brock, Julia Bell, Rachel Crerar

3rd 110 130 Female Ski Relay Jo-Anne Carmichael, Eleonora De Vos, Melinda Pelly
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*Due to space constraints, only the top 3 medal winners are shown here.
A comprehensive list of all State results can be found at:
https://liveheats.com/slsnsw/events    or by scanning  the QR code :

Carnival Results
State Championships

https://liveheats.com/slsnsw
https://liveheats.com/slsnsw
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U13
2nd Male 1km/2km Milo Westcar

5th 2KM Swim Lily Lutschenkow

3rd Female Cameron
Lily Lutschenkow, Tamzin Woolston, 
Eve Seymour, Lucy Whitehead

U14
1st Surf Board Riding (surfing) Saxon Goodwin

2nd Male Cameron
Caden Badstue, Joshua Clark, 
Saxon Goodwin, Felix Stephens

2nd Male Flags Joshua Clark

U15
1st Male Board Race Henry Whitehead

2nd Male Cameron
Jacob Chalmers, Henry Whitehead, 
Dylan Seymour, Thomas McMurtry

Masters
1st 45-49 yrs Female Double Ski Julia Bell, Melanie-Jane Brock

1st 35-39 yrs Female Double Ski Eleonora De Vos, Melinda Pelly

1st 45-49 yrs Female Ironwoman Julia Bell

1st 110 yrs Female Single Ski Relay Julia Bell, Jo Brigden-Jones, Rachel Crerar

1st 35-39 yrs Male Beach Sprint Michael Kembler

2nd 60-64 yrs Female Beach Flags Merrilee Linegar

2nd 30-34 yrs Female Board Rescue Rachel Crerar, Jenna McDonald

2nd 65-69 yrs Female Beach Sprint Kathryn Watts

2nd 45-49 yrs Female Single Ski Julia Bell

2nd 30-34 yrs Female Double Ski Jo Brigden-Jones, Rachel Crerar

2nd 130 yrs Female Surf Team Julia Bell, Melanie-Jane Brock, Rachel Crerar

2nd 110 yrs Female Board Relay Julia Bell, Rachel Crerar, Jenna McDonald

2nd 50-54 yrs Female Single Ski Melanie-Jane Brock

2nd 30-34 yrs Female Ironwoman Rachel Crerar

2nd 170 yrs Female Board Relay Rebecca Crawford, Merrilee Linegar, Hilary Ingle

3rd 35-39 yrs Female Single Ski Eleonora De Vos

3rd 200 yrs Male Beach Relay
Nigel Kassulke, Michael Kember, 
Barrie Feldman, Raymond Ingle

3rd 30-34 yrs Female Single Ski Rachel Crerar

3rd 70-74 yrs Male Surf Race John Platt

3rd 110 yrs Female Taplin Julia Bell, Rachel Crerar, Jenna McDonald

3rd 60-64 yrs Male Beach Sprint Nigel Kassulke

3rd 130 yrs Female Single Ski Relay
Melanie-Jane Brock, Eleonora De Vos, 
Melinda Pelly

3rd 45-49 yrs Female Board Race Melinda Pelly

3rd 35-39 yrs Male Beach Flags Michael Kembler

3rd 70-74 yrs Male Ironman John Platt

Carnival Results

Australian Championships 



Nippers Annual Awards 

JAC DISTINGUISHED VOLUNTEER AWARDS
Ali Malone, Chris Jacka, Katie Helmuth

Katrina Whitehead, Nina Gordon
Peter Hawkins

VOLUNTEER OF THE YEAR AWARD
(Denise Epper Trophy)

Katie Chalmers

OUTSTANDING CLUB PERSON 
(President's Shield)

Caoimhe Toouli, Dominic Smith

CHAIRMAN'S AWARD 
(Maurice Kerrigan Trophy)

Jenni Jordan

SURF EDUCATION AWARD
(Tier Family Trophy)

Kirsty Hawkins

R&R DINKY TOI TROPHY Alannah Toouli, Saxon Goodwin

IAN CRAIG MEMORIAL TROPHY Isla Jordan, Jasper Woolston

ANNIE GLEASON CLUB SPIRIT NIPPPER AWARD Darcie Chapelhow

BEACH COMPETITOR OF THE YEAR Joshua Clark

JUNIOR COMPETITOR OF THE YEAR
(Joe Alagich Trophy)

Lucia Dillon

INTERMEDIATE COMPETITOR OF THE YEAR Joseva Ranatawake

SENIOR COMPETITOR OF THE YEAR
(Joe Alagich Trophy)

Joshua Clark

OUTSTANDING COMPETITOR OF THE YEAR
(ANZ Shield)

Millie Gaudry

OUTSTANDING TEAM PERFORMANCE
U13 Female Board Relay

Evey Seymour, Lucy Whitehead, Tammy Woolston

MANLY NIPPERS INTERBRANCH REPRESENTATIVES

Alice Woolnough, Millie Gaudry, Caden Badstue, Felix
Stephens, Isla Jordan, Jai Wineera, Jesse Jackson, 
Joshua Clark, Jules Huisman, Lucy Whitehead, Milo
Westcar, Tammy Woolston, Sasha Gordon, Matillda
Dillon, Saxon Goodwin

JAC SRC WATER SAFETY CONTRIBUTION AWARD

Bernie Burrows, Catrina Martin, Claire Hocking
Dee Barrow, Fabio Pancaldi, Greg Gordon

Hannah Huisman, Jamie Murrell, Jenna McDonald,
Joe Ranatawake, Julian Jackson, Katrina Westcar,

Lindsay Soutar, Luke Chalmers, Mel Pelly
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UNDER 8 MALE FEMALE

Club Spirit Award Archer Holmes Zoe Favager

Most Improved Ryk Huisman Brooke Harrison

Club Champion Jonah Jackson Lola Seymour

Achievement Award Hayley Chalmers

UNDER 9 MALE FEMALE

Club Spirit Award Caleb Cash Sloane Clark

Most Improved Will Skinner Madeline Barrow

Club Champion Soloman Eames Lucia Dillon

UNDER 10 MALE FEMALE

Club Spirit Award Alex Bankes Florence Smith

Most Improved Reuben Mackintosh Thia Lazic

Club Champion David Husiman Sara Martin

UNDER 11 MALE FEMALE

Club Spirit Award Felix Greig Veronica Davies

Most Improved Leo Murrell Tully Laird

Club Champion Joseva Ranatawake Maya Gaffney

UNDER 12 MALE FEMALE

Club Spirit Award Harry Nicholson Ivy Richards

Most Improved Harley Edwards Zoe Hill

Club Champion Jesse Jackson Alice Woolnough

UNDER 13 MALE FEMALE

Club Spirit Award Thomas Sharp Elodie Banks

Most Improved Ryan Chalmers Lily Lutschenkow

Club Champion Milo Westcar Lucy Whitehead

UNDER 14 MALE FEMALE

Club Spirit Award Sebastian Serpetti Maisy Adams, Willow McLeod

Most Improved Jasper Woolston Isla Jordan

Club Champion Felix Stephens Charlie Collins
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Nippers Age Group Awards
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PATROL HOURS OR OTHER
QUALIFICATIONS FOR
EXISTING MEMBERS

PATROL HOURS OR OTHER
QUALIFICATIONS FOR NEW
AWARDS OR MEMBERS 

ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

A = Greater than 30 patrol
hours 

maximum 10 water safety
hours 
20 hours must be
completed on home
patrol

YEAR OF SERVICE GRANTED

A = 4 hours per month after the
attainment of the the award 

Eg. a new Bronze holder graduates in
December would require 16 hours  -
4 hours each for January, February,
March and April

LOA = Leave of Absence

LM = Life Member

LS = Long Service

AW = Award Member

B = Year of Service not
Granted but member is in
good standing

B = between 2 and 4 hours per
month

n/a transfer or other

ADF = Australian
Defence Force

C = Year of Service not
granted; member must
reapply to join with letter of
commitment

C = less than 2 hours per month NP = Nipper Parent 

Service/Volunteering 

Patrol Grading Key

We thank all members, each and every one of you, for your invaluable service and dedication to our club. At
its heart Manly LSC is  a team of remarkable volunteers  - who selflessly give their time, energy and skills to
ensure the safety and well-being of all beach goers.

Whether you have served as patrol captain, patrolled consistently, jumped into other patrols, patrolled where
you could between school commitments & sports, provided first aid support, assisted with administration,
maintained equipment, or contributed in any other capacity, your commitment has been instrumental in
maintaining the smooth operation of the club. You all make a profound impact on and off patrol to the lives of
those who visit our beautiful beach and your efforts foster our volunteering spirit and camaraderie.

So whilst the following pages reflect our patrol gradings which run to a strict set of guidelines outlined below,
your contributions which may not quite fit in the box below have not gone unnoticed. Countless hours have
been dedicated, countless lives have been touched and countless moments have made a difference. 

Congratulations to the following as they graduate from Nippers and move to join the Senior Ranks of
Manly Life Saving Club:

Welcome to the Senior Ranks

Maisy Adams
Catherine Andrews
Caden Badstue
Florence Bird
Charlie Brock
Esther Callaghan
Darcie Chapelhow
Joshua Clark
Charlie Collins
Henry Costello

Madhavi Kaushal
Orla King
Nicholas Kwon
Jordan Kyte
Carter Mcgee
Indigo Mciver
Willow McLeod
Samuel Northcote
Ryan Pu
Harper Roberts

Evie Davis
Francisco Juan De La Barra Schmidt
Matilda Dillon
William Easton
Saxon Goodwin
Chiquita Marley Graham
Taj Hartigan
Ella Hawkins
Callum Hill
Isla Jordan

Melodie Rudner
Hudson Sasikin
Sebastian Serpetti
Adeline Steiner
Felix Stephens
Alannah Toouli
Joshua van der Reyden
Olivia Wilson
Jasper Woolston
Emily Zhuo



Patrol Attendance 
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Name Total
hours

Patrolled
Rostered
Hours

Grade

Suzanne Brown 40.75 31.75 A

Schalk Bruwer 30 27.5 A

Ian Buck 43.75 23.25 A

Steve Buck 13.75 13.75 C

Ken Buckley 42.5 36 A

Eugene Budovsky 5.25 5.25 C

Ian Bullock 41.5 31.75 A

Christopher Patrick
Burke

48 37 A

John Burke 33.5 22 A

Olivia Burmester 25 0 B

Robert Burns 54.25 33.75 A

Santiago Burridge 13.75 13.75 LS

Claude Busse 57.25 41.25 A

Geoffrey Campbell 33.75 33.75 A

David Cansdell 2.75 0 LS

Matthew Carey 5.25 0 LS

Jo-Anne
Carmichael

31.67 18.17 B

Rebecca Carmody 44 37 A

Matthew Carpenter 37.25 26.5 A

Ben Chalmers 76.25 0 LS

Peter Checketts 11 8.5 LS

Vincent Cheong 8.5 8.5 C

Sarah Chirgwin 36 31.75 A

Alex Chudley 38.75 36 A

Hamish Church 8.5 4.25 C

Julian Clarkson 41.25 41.25 A

Nicola Wallis Cleary 59.25 41.25 A

Danica Clifford 20 14.75 B

Brandt Clifford 19 19 C

Ashwin Coburn 59 31.75 A

Marguerite Collins 40.25 22.25 A

Nathan Collins 28.5 28.5 B

Charlie Colwell 0 0 C

Sarah Cook 31.25 26.5 A

George Cornwell 2.25 2.25 C

Lauren Costello 38 38 A

Geoffrey Costello 38 33.75 A

Jasmine Costello 37 27.5 A

Robert Costello 20.5 20.5 LS

Hayden Cotter 25.4167 0 B

Simon Cowell 41.5 37 A

John Craven 31.5 23.25 A

Rebecca Crawford 26 4.25 LS

Thomas Crawford  17 17 LS

Rachel Crerar  2 0 LS

Amelia Cressey  9.5 5.25 B

Name Total
hours

Patrolled
Rostered
Hours

Grade

Alana Abercrombie 17 17 C

Casey Aimer 33.75 30.75 A

Salli Alderson 17.75 4.5 LS

Susie Allison 21.25 12.75 B

Alison Annett 22.25 12.75 B

Alexis Apostolellis 37 37 A

Finn Argus 18.25 14 B

Marina Aride
Duarte Marin

32.75 0 B

Christine Armour 18 0 LS

Ara Arza 0 0 C

Hussein Awad 13 13 C

Joseph Badaoui 11.75 0 LS

Paul Baier 4.25 4.25 A

Todd Baker 11.25 0 C

Robin Barham 44.5 27.75 LS

Samuel Barham 0 0 C

Michael Barnes 44.25 38.25 A

Cormac Barry 23.25 23.25 A

Cody Barton 23 12.25 B

Rosalyn Beaver 39.75 27.5 A

Roland Beck 55 33 A

Julia Bell 42.5 19 B

Robin Bell 38.25 19 B

Zoe Bell 33.25 27.5 A

Cameron Berkman 19 8.5 LS

Aletta Berkouwer 45.75 31.75 A

Nicholas Bernard 5.5 0 LS

Peta Bird 25.75 13.75 LS

Bran Black 31.75 31.75 A

Michael Bochner 36 31 LS

Jason Bond 21.25 21.25 B

John Bond 3.5 0 LS

Alan Booth 35.25 21.25 LS

Jessica Bower 25.75 22.25 B

Jessica Bowman 32.5 23.25 A

James Bowman 11.25 4.25 A

Jason Bowyer 21.75 21.75 A

Timothy Braunstein 19 19 C

Tom Breakwell 0 0 C

Frances Brenchley 19.5 0 LS

Colin Brenchley 4.5 0 LS

Joanne Brigden-
Jones

29.75 27.5 A

Kristoffer Brock 34.75 22.25 A

Melanie-Jane Brock 22 0 LS

Joris Broeders 13.75 9.5 B

Lance Brooks  36.5 27.5 A



Patrol Attendance 
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Name Total
hours

Graded
Hours

Grade

Oliver Crofton  4.25 0 C

Thomas Crowe  23.25 23.25 B

James Crowley  36 26.5 A

Rod Croxford  5.25 5.25 LS

Ben Cryan  12.5 4.25 A

Tamila Dalila Cunha
Melo 

24.5 19.25 B

John Cunningham  42.25 37 A

Jerome Curll  39.5 36 A

Ashlea Curll  0 0 C

Timothy Cuthbert  51.75 4 A

Victoria Cuthbert  39 0 A

Elisha Cuthbert  34 0 A

Alex Cutting  5.25 5.25 C

Ronnie Dalsgaard  46.75 9.5 B

Michael Damm  9.5 9.5 B

Christian Dandre  51.5 40.25 A

Jenny Danks  8.5 4.25 C

Robert Darke  23.25 20.5 B

Ashton Davies  27.75 12.75 B

Rachel Day  34 27.5 A

Camille de
Carmejane-Vesc 

42.5 28.5 A

Eleonora De Vos  45 24 A

Alison Devlin  0 0 C

Catherine DeVrye  44.5 31.75 A

Lachlan Dickinson  26.5 0 B

Geoff Dickson  75 41.25 A

Nathan Dickson  44.25 41.25 A

Cecilia Diemont  9.5 9.5 C

Kirsty Dollisson  67 44.75 A

Joshua Dooney  35.75 0 B 

Amelie Dooney  32.75 9.5 B

Scott Douglas  45.25 27 A

Joanne Drew  0 0 C

Derek Dreyer  34.25 31.75 LS

Andrew Drinkwater  36 36 A

Andrean Duffy  6 0 LS

Alain Dupuis  53 38.75 LS

Nick Edmonds  29.75 12.75 LS

Richard Elliott  125.25 36.75 A

Geoffrey Elliott  42.25 37 A

Grant Ellison  21.25 0 LS

Julia Elmes  50.25 46.25 A

Nick Emmott Bennett  37.5 24.25 A

Tom Emmott Bennett 37.5 9 B

India Emmott Bennett 13.25 13.25 C

Tianna Emmott
Bennett

0 0 C

Name Total
hours

Graded
Hours

Grade

Tim Ettle 49.75 41.25 A

Jacob Evans 23.25 23.25 B

Matthew Fairfax 23.25 23.25 B

John Fallon 71.5 26.5 A

Jai Farrell 12.75 12.75 C

Tim Farrelly 12.75 4.25 LS

Alicia Fay 26 0 B

Ikuyo Feldman 49.5 27.5 A

Barrie Feldman 42.75 32.75 A

Marianne Feoli 4.25 4.25 C

Daniel Fogarty 0 0 LS

Scott Freeman 48.5 36 A

Mauricio Fuentes 2.5 0 C

Andrew Furniss 52.5 36.75 A

Zoe Furniss 14.75 14.75 C

Simon Gaiger 38 38 A

Maurice Gallagher 29 25.5 B

Leandro Gama 14.75 4.25 C

Michelle Gamble 35.5 26.5 A

Matthew Gardiner 30.75 30.75 A

Michelle Gardiner 22.25 22.25 B

Ella Garrett 44.25 12.75 B

Tilla Garrett 32 4.25 B 

Ava Garrett 0 0 C

Dianna Garth 51.75 33 A

Alex Garth 44.25 40 A

Steve Garth 35.25 35.25 A

Annabelle Garth 25 23 B

Andrew Geddes 51.5 44.75 A

Melissa Geftakis 4.25 4.25 A

Alistair Gibson 46.5 44.5 A

Vanessa Gibson 42.25 38.25 A

Neil Gibson 19 0 A 

Gregory Gigas 24.25 18 LS

Antony Gilbert 46.5 29.5 A

Joseph Gillespie 8.5 4.25 C

Maryann Gobee 14.75 14.75 LS

Jorge Gonzalez 4.25 4.25 C

Linda Goodwin 49 41.25 A

Tom Goodwin 10.5 0 C

Luka Gordon 27 4.25 B

Henry Gorton 55.25 33.75 A

Nicole Gorton 51.75 38 A

Leoni Graham 43 29.5 LS

Jesse Grazotis 0 0 A 

Murray Green 22.25 22.25 LS

Andrew Greig 38 26.5 A
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Name Total
hours

Graded
Hours

Grade

Chloe Gulson 8.25 5.25 C

Camilla Gunn 30 30 A

Greg Hackman 13.75 13.75 C

David Haesaert 35.75 31.75 A

Kyle Halford 4.25 4.25 A

Troy Ham 0 0 C

Andre Hamman 33.25 30.75 A

Mark Handley 4.25 4.25 C

Ben Hanley 30.25 27.5 A

Matthew Harris 13.75 4.25 C

David Harrison 53.25 26.5 A

Russell Harrison 17 8.5 LS

Madeleine Hartley 47.5 36 A

Alexis Harvey 21.25 21.25 B

Craig Haskins 37.75 24.5 LS

Eva Haughton 21.75 10.75 B

Elizabeth Hawke 32.75 22 A

Kirsty Hawkins 55 25.5 A

Peter Hawkins 52 26.5 A

Noah Hawkins 38.25 22.25 A

Mark Hempel 8.75 4.25 A

Jose Eugenio
Hernandez Ruiz

4.5 0 A

Paul Hewitt 6 0 LS

Peter Hicks 38 28.5 A

Mark Hill 37 37 A

Simone Hill 4.25 4.25 LS

Camille Hirose 33.25 0 B 

Andrew Hite 5.25 5.25 A

Andrew Holt 18 18 C

Michelle Hone 26.25 23.25 B

Craig Hood 22.25 13.25 LS

Mark Horgan 31.75 27.5 LS

Mark Houston 31.25 22.25 A

James Hudson 41.75 21.25 A

Fiona Hughes 49.25 30.75 A

Mark Hughes 40 40 A

Toby Hughes 21.25 21.25 B

Camiel Huisman 22.5 0 C

Matt Humphries 30 27.5 A

Steven Hunter 44.25 38.25 A

Ryan Hunter 0 0 A

Edith Hurt 12.75 12.75 C

Raymond Ingle 55.75 34.75 LS

Hilary Ingle 37.75 30.75 LS

Cameron Ingle 32.75 22.25 A

Daniel Ingle 28.5 18 B

Jarrod Isopo 53.5 27.5 A

Ondrej Javorka 39.5 31.75 A

Name Total
hours

Graded
Hours

Grade

Caitlin Jeffries 31.75 31.75 A

Andrew Johnson 46 37 A

Patrick Johnson 38.75 32.75 A

Liam Jordan 15.5 4.25 B

Harvey Joyce 9.75 4.25 C

Rodney Joyce 2.5 0 LS

Kerry Jukes 39.25 30.75 A

Laila Kaiser 14.08 14.08 C

Kevin Karp 62.75 44.5 A

Nigel Kassulke 40 33.25 A

Michele Kaye 33 28.75 LS

Samuel Keall 4.25 4.25 C

Michael Keelan 27.25 22.25 LS

James Keene 47.75 36.25 A

Mark Kehoe 9.5 9.5 C

David Keir 5.25 5.25 C

Lyndal Keith 46.75 37 A

Tara Kelly 18 18 B

Liam Kelly 8.5 8.5 C

Liam A Kelly 0 0 LS

Michael Kember 2 0 LS

Gerard Kennedy 42.75 37.25 A

Christopher
Killoran

23.25 19 A

Amy Killoran 19 14.75 A

Malcolm Kindred 5 0 LS

Bethany Kings 17.75 4.25 A

Christopher
Kinsella

30.75 25.5 A

Anne Kraefft 4.25 4.25 C

Bernd Krause 70.25 36 A

Marcus Krause 14.75 4.25 C

Julianne Kremer 43.5 40.5 LS

Alison Kruger 38.25 31.75 A

Paul Kwon 38.25 0 B

Christopher Kwon 37 13.75 B

Jennefer Laird 48.25 18 B

Melanie Lambert 28.5 23.25 B

Kalea Lancaster 19 19 C

Amy Lanza 29.75 13.75 B

Thomas Larcombe 9.75 4.25 C

Nicole Larcombe 8.5 8.5 B

Olivia Larcombe 0 0 C

Kristine Lechelt-
Green

29 26.5 LS

Phoebe Lechner 27.75 0 B

Angus Lechner 4.25 4.25 C

Max Lechner 4.25 4.25 C

Tracey Leitch 18 18 A
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Name Total
hours

Graded
Hours

Grade

Kyle Lidbury 23.25 23.25 B

Merrilee Linegar 45 30.75 A

Jade Lish 4.25 4.25 A

David Livermore 45.5 36 A

Isabella Livermore 26.5 26.5 B

Kit Lloyd 56.25 39.25 A

James Love 0 0 A

George Lowndes 13 9.5 C

Vlad Lutschenkow 13.75 9.75 B

Jane Macleod 50.75 30.75 LS

Angus MacPhail 3 0 LS

David Maguire 65 0 LS

Clair Maguire 15.75 15.75 C

Ben Manners 15.75 4.25 B

Boris Manzewski 33.25 33.25 A

Gemma Margiotta 6.75 4.25 LS

Leah Marks 32 0 B

Catrin Martin 58.5 23.25 A

Kate Martin 43 25.5 A

John Masters 4.5 0 LS

Sophie Matehaere 4 0 C

Alison Maunder 35 30.75 A

Adam McCarthy 34.5 30.5 A

Jenna McDonald 84 21.25 A

Andrea McDonald 48.75 33 A

Michael McGrath 14.25 0 LS

Jenni McMillan 30.75 30.75 LS

Finn McMurtry 35.25 12.5 B

Andy McMurtry 34.5 14.5 B

Julian McPherson 23.25 23.25 B

Thomas Mcpherson 0 0 C

Elizabeth Miller 59 28.5 A

Hayley Miller 47 30.25 A

Andrew Miller 33 27 A

Eliza Monnock 9.63 0 C

Neil Moon 31.5 28.5 LS

Linda Moon 22 19 LS

Rex Morris 33 22.25 A

Keira Morris-
Akeroyd

31.75 31.75 A

Lizzy Mulcahy 32.75 32.75 A

Christopher
Mulcahy

31.75 31.75 LS

Sean Mullaney 8.5 8.5 LS

Nadia Mulvogue 31.75 27.5 A

Charli Munro 5 0 C

Kate Munro 2.75 0 LS

Sarah Murdoch 39.75 35.25 A

Name Total
hours

Graded
Hours

Grade

Deborah Murdoch 31.75 31.75 LS

Ross Murdoch 31.75 31.75 LS

Kenneth Murphy 44.75 14.75 A

Jamie Murrell 83 22.25 A

Ekaterina
Myshinskaya

40.5 36 A

Braden Newling 27.63 0 B

Andrew Newling 4.25 0 C

Laura Newton 42 37 A

Eli Newton 24.13 0 B

Rainer Noack 31.75 31.75 A

Mark Northcote 23 19 B

Thomas Northcote 22.25 20.25 B

Mari Notaras 36.5 27.5 LS

Paul Notaras 36 36 A

Leanne O’Neill 29.5 22.25 A 

Sheena O'Beirne 38.25 36 A

Ryan O'Gorman 4.25 4.25 C

Jessica Oakhill 26.5 20.5 A

Paul Oates 30.25 27.5 A

Lloyd Osbon 18 18 C

Kelly Owens 40.75 24.25 A

Kelly-Anne Packer 26.5 26.5 B

Lee Palmer 74.5 34 A

Mia Paltridge 0 0 C

Colin Panagakis 41.25 37 LS

Fabio Pancaldi 56 17 B

Utsav Panta 4.25 0 C

Jeffrey Parsons 37.5 30.75 A

Rhani-lee Payne 81.52 41.25 LS

Georgina Pelly 18.75 0 LS

Jane Pender 134 48.5 LS

Sven Peters 4.25 4.25 A

John Platt 12 0 LS

Marco Poggi 32.75 23.25 A

Ky Pratt 8.5 0 A

Janet Proudfoot 9 0 LS

Melissa Pye 39.25 32.75 A

Simon Rainback 19 19 C

Lotte Ravesteijn 25.25 25.25 B

Caroline Raymond 32.67 30.17 A

Sophie Reade 4.25 4.25 C

Michael Reville 26.25 5.25 C

Spencer Richards 27.75 4.25 B

Willem Riddington 31.5 0 B

David Roberts 38.75 36 A

Elizabeth Roberts 4.25 4.25 C

Cooper Robinson 18 0 C
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Name Total
hours

Graded
Hours

Grade

Paul Roe 9.5 9.5 C

Keaten Ronge-
Smith

32.25 18 B

Eryn Ronge-Smith 29.5 18 B

Samuel Ruban 18.88 0 C

Oscar Rudner 17 17 B

Emily Ryder 0 0 A

Wayne Sammut 40.5 38 A

Matilda Sammut 24.25 24.25 B

Neil Schafer 3 0 LS

Elizabeth Scherrer 70.5 36 A

Carys Scholefield 20.25 18 B

Kai Schwanke 4.25 4.25 C

Kiahni Scott 30 5.25 B

Darren Scott 18 18 C

Susan Sellar 12.75 12.75 C

Jonathon Sellar 0 0 C

Mark Seymour 15 0 LS

Rishi Shankar 24 8.5 B

Peter Sharp 24.5 9.5 B

Edwin Shaw 12 7 LS

Michael Sheehan 34.25 31.75 A

Daphne Sider 38.25 31.75 A

Don Sillar 2.5 0 LS

Anthony Simpson 37 37 A

Tishaan
Siriwardana

24.5 0 B

George Smith 31 24.75 A

Ethan Smith 13.75 13.75 B

Joel Solomons 26 26 B

Lindsay Soutar 40 4.25 C

Joost Speekenbrink 30.75 26.5 A

Sophie Stacker 17.75 10.75 B

James Stackpool 3 0 LS

Louise Stevenson 30.75 30.75 A

James Stewart 5.75 0 LS

Alex Stoney 0 0 A

Travis Strike 0 0 A

Michael Studden 31 26.75 LS

Charles Studden 4.25 4.25 C

Chris Taylor 34 27.5 A

Andrew Thomas 24.25 24.25 LS

Gareth Thomas 0 0 LS

James Thomson 32.4167 0 B

John Thomson 14 0 LS

Hamish Thorpe 0 0 C

Jack Tier 22.5 0 B

Christopher Tomsic 37 31.75 A

Nicholas Tomsic 30.25 27.5 A

Name Total
hours

Graded
Hours

Grade

Penelope Treadgold 4.5 4.5 C

Sophia Tremenheere 38.75 36 A

Candice Trevenna 31.75 31.75 A

Peter Turnbull 47.25 44.75 A

Harry Underhill 0 0 C

Matthew Underhill 0 0 C

Greg Vale 43 41 A

Nic van der Reyden 18 18 C

Karen van Someren 27.25 27.25 B

Finley Vaughan 9.75 4.25 C

Audrey Vavassori 19.5 13.75 C

Marleen Veldhuis 15.75 4.25 C

Nicolaas Venekamp 34.25 31.75 A

Mate Vigh 24.75 18.75 B

Stephan Vissers 35.5 32.75 A

Monique Wacher 32 23.25 A

Paul Wacher 13.75 13.75 LS

Skye Wacher 13.75 13.75 C

Camilla Wacher 5.25 0 C

Kaija Wall 15.5 9.5 LS

Bastien Wallace 27.75 0 LS

Kelly Walters 25.5 0 B

Sophie Walters 25.5 0 B

Charlotte Ward 22.75 0 B

Joe Watkins 25 4.25 LS

Laura Watson 41.75 29.75 A

Kathryn Watts 42 24.25 LS

Felicity Weaver 22.25 22.25 B

Jocelyn Webb 52 26.25 A

Kim Weber 15.25 5.25 LS

Katrina Westcar 63 0 B

Catherine White 17.5 4.25 A

Rohan Whiteford 4 0 C

Andrew Whitehead 38.25 18 B

Amanda Whiteman 25 0 LS

Matt Wilkin 36 36 A

Nicholas Williams 18.75 4 LS

Colleen Williams 16 13 C

James Frank
Williamson

33.25 33.25 A

Braiden Williamson 28.5 24.25 B

Cameron Wise 48 41.25 A

Raymond Wong 64.25 40 A

Medwin Wong 58.5 31.75 A

Errol Woodbury 48.25 45.5 A

Maddison Woodbury 39.75 37 A

Sophie Yates 33.75 33.75 A

John Zdrilic 48.75 40.5 A
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The 2024 season was a huge turnaround for the Manly Savers. After just one win in 2023, we stormed into
contention with an 11–1 regular season record, finishing third due to bonus points. Our only loss came against
minor premiers Georges River. 

Finals footy brought our best. A dominant 36–7 Elimination Final win over Oatley was followed by a statement
37–17 victory over Georges River in the Grand Final Qualifier. In the decider against Burraneer, a 33–7 halftime
deficit proved too much to recover from, despite clawing back to 33–19. A late intercept shortly after sealed
the win for Burraneer.  

Adam Croft was named Best and Fairest but dislocated his shoulder in extra time of the Qualifier. Captain
Tom Walsh earned Players’ Player, and Pipo Bernadi took Best Forward after dominating the lineout and
defence. 

2024 also saw Savers field their first women’s team. In true Savers spirit, the women’s team was comprised of
varying levels of experience and skill, but each and every player displayed huge heart, enjoying a tough but
fun season. 

Season highlights included Sponsors & Old Boys Day (39–5 win over Balmain), trips to Byron Bay and Nelson
Bay, and our new Latin Culture Round, celebrating Argentine Flag Day with a massive BBQ and salsa dancing.
Lock in 21 June 2025 — it’ll be even bigger. 

With 95% of the squad returning and key additions arriving, we’re ready to go one better. The mission: bring
the cup home to Manly. At time of writing, we are 6 from 6 so stay tuned. 

The Savers Juniors continued their success with six out of the eight teams making the finals, with the Under
13’s White team bringing home the premiership with a 29 – 14 win over Randwick. Congratulations! 
In 2025 the juniors continue with the great momentum that has been built behind the club with ten boys
teams from 13’s to opens and the exciting introduction of two girls’ teams in the 14’s and 16’s. 

The future of the club is looking great! “Take me out with the Savers!” 

Manly Savers Rugby

John ‘Fridge’ Szaka 



Jon ‘Wallaby’ Mitchell
Jon was a fearless competitor, Manly Marlins rugby legend, and loyal member of Manly SLSC. He competed in
swim and R&R events, sailed at elite levels, and later became a coach, administrator, and mentor. As a
successful architect and developer, Jon brought the same grit and passion to all areas of life. He will be
remembered as a driving force both on and off the field

In Memoriam

John Hicks (1941–2025)
John joined Manly LSC in 1956 and served for nearly 70 years, particularly within the Boat Section as a
respected sweep, coach, and major benefactor. A surf boat was named in his honour, and he received the
SLSA Service Award in 2022. Also a dedicated rugby man, John played premiership rugby with the Manly
Savers and 1st Grade with the Manly Marlins. A passionate clubman and loyal friend, John leaves an enduring
legacy.

We honour and remember the following cherished members and supporters Manly Life Saving Club, whose
contributions and friendships have left a lasting legacy. Their presence will be deeply missed.

Richard Hickson
A standout beach sprinter and former Savers rugby player, Richard won Australian gold in the senior men’s
beach relay with Manly LSC and earned multiple national and state honours. He was inducted into the SLSWA
Hall of Fame and led an outstanding legal career, serving as Attorney General of the Marshall Islands.
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William Richard Murray
Former Mayor of Manly, 1975-77, lifelong Manly LSC member, achieving 60-Year Long Service Award.



In Memoriam
Ross Ryan
Former owner of The Steyne Hotel, Ross, was a generous sponsor and long-time supporter of Manly LSC. His
philanthropy, particularly in the Manly area, had a profound community impact, with charitable giving
exceeding $1 million annually. Ross was also a supporter of Savers Rugby and many local organisations. He
will be remembered with gratitude and affection.

Patricia A. Hawkins (née Ryan)
Born in Manly in 1935, Patricia was a proud member of the Manly Ladies March Past team in the 1950s before
embarking on a life of global adventure. A trailblazer in business, advocate for women’s rights, and loving
matriarch, Patricia’s adventurous spirit and deep connection to Manly will always be remembered.

David Hay Snr MBE
A long-serving Patron and Vice-Patron of Manly LSC, David was an unwavering supporter of the Club and
broader Manly community. His service spanned 23 years on Manly Council, as Mayor, local MP, and NSW
Minister. David’s enduring civic contribution and support of the Club will long be remembered

(L-R) Ross Ryan, Patricia A. Hawkins (née Ryan), David Hay Snr MBE
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Members 

Joseph A. Alagich

Darryl Andrijin

Murray Beachley

Christopher Bell

Greg Bennett

Anthony Bonner AM

Graham Bruce 

Stanley Buckman

Michael Carroll

Matthew Clymer

Cameron Coghlan

Brendan Connie

Kenneth Crawford

Ernest Davis

Anthony Dawes

John Doyle

Mark Epper

Michael Fitzhardinge

Naomi Flood

Shane Gilroy

Gregory Hall

Bob Herring

Robert McDonough

William McMahon

Raymond Moran

Daniel Mulcahy

Victoria O’Halloran, 

David Parker

Melinda Pelly

Ray Petersen

Craig Riddington

Warwick Sainsbery

Alan Seeney

Barry Seymour

John Sneesby

Glenn Stone

Allan Tier

Anthony Tier

Anthony Vieceli

Michael Wilkinson

Robert Williams

Bernard Wotton

Life Members Long Service Long Service
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Gregory Gigas

Simon Gillespie

Kristian Gilroy

Nathan Gilroy

Maryann Gobee

Brian Graber

Leoni Graham

Murray Green

James Greenwood

Janet Hall

Debra Hanson

Michelle Harris

Russell Harrison

Craig Haskins

Charles Haynes

Paul Hewitt

John Hicks

Craig Hood

Mark Horgan

Catherine Howard

David Howard

Robyn Humphrey

Max Humphreys

Raymond Ingle

Rodney Joyce

Catherine Judd

Paul Kaplan

Sandra Kaplan

Bryn Kavanagh

Michele Kaye

Adam Keelan

Anita Keelan

Michael Keelan

Elaine Kindred

Malcolm Kindred

Jenny Knapman

Mark Knapman

Julianne Kremer

Marc Lawler

Maxwell Lawson

Kristine Lechelt-Green

Anne Lemon

Hugo Loneragan

William Lough

Kendrick Louis

Jane Macleod

David Maguire

ohn Martin

Sita Mason

John Masters

John Mater

Brett Mathews

Graham Mattison

Sue McGregor

Stewart McLachlan

Jenni McMillan

Fraser McTavish

Sean Abbott
Darrin Adcock
Salli Alderson
Cynthia Alley
Troy Andrew
Christine Armour
James Arnold
Leonie Atkins
Joseph Badaoui
Blake Ballard
Kane Ballard
Robin Barham
Cameron Berkman
Josephine Bernard
Nicholas Bernard
Robert Binsted
Peta Bird
Gregory Black
Terence Boardman OAM
Michael Bochner
John Bond
Alan Booth
Anthony Bostock
Colin Brenchley
Frances Brenchley
Melanie-Jane Brock
Suzanne Brown
Lachlan Bruce
Santiago Burridge
Narelle Butler
Paul Butler
Lindsay Campbell
David Cansdell
Matthew Carey
Ben Chalmers
Lee Chaloner
Peter Checketts
Philip Coghlan
Robert Costello
Rebecca Crawford
Scott Crawford
Thomas Crawford
Rachel Crerar
Manuela Crouch
Rod Croxford
Timothy Cuthbert
Mahdi Deaton
Shaun Denton
Nicholas Dowson
Derek Dreyer
Andrean Duffy
Alain Dupuis
Mary-Anne Eades
Robert Eades
Nick Edmonds
Denise Elder
Grant Ellison
Florence Epper
Tim Farrelly
Rodney FitzGerald
Daniel Fogarty
Mary Fogarty
Noel Froggatt
Donald Gain

Long Service

Linda Moon
Neil Moon
Chris Morgan
Christopher Mulcahy
Sean Mullaney
Stephen Mulvogue
Kate Munro
Deborah Murdoch
Ross Murdoch
Benjamin Neighbour
Mari Notaras
Majella OBrien
Ray Oliver
Colin Panagakis
John Parnell
Rhani-lee Payne
Jane Pender
Mark Petersen
John Platt
Greg Pooley
Mark Pottie
Beverley Prior
Janet Proudfoot
David Pullinger
Josephine Redmond
Jenny Rees
Brett Riddington
Warren Riley
Alicia Robledo
Neil Schafer
David Scollon
Mark Seymour
Edwin Shaw
Keinwen Shephard
Frank Shields
Andrew Shipton
Michael Shipton
Kerry Sibraa
Sandra Sieb
Don Sillar
David B Simmons
Cecil John Singleton
Rosslyn Skinner
David R Smith
Sam Speer
Anna Stackpool
James Stackpool
James Stewart
Jonathon Stock
Harrison Stone
Michael Studden
John Szaka
Lori Szambowski
Gareth Thomas
Geoffrey Thorsen
William Tricker
Sophie Tyner
Paul Wacher
Alexandra Walding
Kaija Wall
Bastien Wallace
David Washbrook
Joe Watkins
Kathryn Watts



Kim Weber

Amanda Whiteman

Mark Williams

Nicholas Williams

David Willows

Ra Wineera

Attracta Wolohan

Katrina Worner

Timothy Worner

Simon Buckingham
Philippa Cave
Marshall Denning
Anne Henshaw
Jennifer Hole
John McIntosh
Stephen Morgan
Roisin Tumilty
Pamela Walton

2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT73

Alana Abercrombie
Casey Aimer
Susie Allison
Alison Annett
Alexis Apostolellis
Ara Arza
Hussein Awad
Paul Baier
Todd Baker
Samuel Barham
Michael Barnes
Cormac Barry
Cody Barton
Rosalyn Beaver
Roland Beck
Julia Bell
Robin Bell
Zoe Bell
Aletta Berkouwer
Bran Black
Jason Bond
Jessica Bower
James Bowman
Jessica Bowman
Jason Bowyer
Timothy Braunstein
Joanne Brigden-Jones
Kristoffer Brock
Joris Broeders
Lance Brooks
Schalk Bruwer
Ian Buck
Steve Buck
Ken Buckley
Eugene Budovsky
Ian Bullock
Christopher Patrick Burke

Ikuyo Feldman
Marianne Feoli
Scott Freeman
Emanuel Freer
Mauricio Fuentes
Andrew Furniss
Jude Furniss
Simon Gaiger
Maurice Gallagher
Leandro Gama
Michelle Gamble
Matthew Gardiner
Michelle Gardiner
Gregory Gardner
Ella Garrett
Tilla Garrett
Alex Garth
Annabelle Garth
Dianna Garth
Steve Garth
Andrew Geddes
Melissa Geftakis
Alistair Gibson
Vanessa Gibson
Antony Gilbert
Joseph Gillespie
Jorge Gonzalez
Linda Goodwin
Tom Goodwin
Nicole Gorton
Jesse Grazotis
Andrew Greig
Chloe Gulson
Camilla Gunn
Greg Hackman
David Haesaert
Troy Ham
Andre Hamman
Mark Handley
Ben Hanley
Matthew Harris
David Harrison
Madeleine Hartley
Elizabeth Hawke
Peter Hawkins
Mark Hempel
Jose Eugenio 
Hernandez Ruiz
Peter Hicks
Mark Hill
Andrew Hite
Noah Hodgson
Andrew Holt
Michelle Hone
Mark Houston
James Hudson
Fiona Hughes
Mark Hughes
Camiel Huisman
Cherie Humel
 Matt Humphries
Ryan Hunter
Steven Hunter
Edith Hurt

Cameron Ingle

Daniel Ingle

Jarrod Isopo

Ondrej Javorka

Caitlin Jeffries

Andrew Johnson

Kerry Jukes

Laila Kaiser

Kevin Karp

Nigel Kassulke

Samuel Keall

 Mark Kehoe

David Keir

 Lyndal Keith

Liam Kelly

Gerard Kennedy

Phil Kightley

Amy Killoran

Christopher Killoran

Bethany Kings

Christopher Kinsella

Anne Kraefft

Bernd Krause

Alison Kruger

Paul Kwon

Jennefer Laird

Melanie Lambert

Amy Lanza

Nicole Larcombe

Tracey Leitch

Kyle Lidbury

Merrilee Linegar

Jade Lish

David Livermore

Kit Lloyd

James Love

George Lowndes

Vlad Lutschenkow

Clair Maguire

Ben Manners

Boris Manzewski

Leah Marks

Catrin Martin

Kate Martin

Sophie Matehaere

Alison Maunder

Adam McCarthy

Andrea McDonald

Jenna McDonald

Jacqueline McLeod

Andy McMurtry

Megan McMurtry

Julian McPherson

Thomas Mcpherson

Andrew Miller

Elizabeth Miller

Hayley Miller

Members 
Long Service

Reserve Active

Active 18+

Active 18+ Active 18+Active 18+
John Burke
Olivia Burmester
Robert Burns
Claude Busse
Geoffrey Campbell
Rebecca Carmody
Matthew Carpenter
Vincent Cheong
Sarah Chirgwin
Alex Chudley
Hamish Church
Julian Clarkson
Nicola Wallis Cleary
Brandt Clifford
Danica Clifford
Ashwin Coburn
Nathan Collins
Tim Collins
Sarah Cook
George Cornwell
Geoffrey Costello
Jasmine Costello
Lauren Costello
Hamish Cowan
Simon Cowell
John Craven
Amelia Cressey
Thomas Crowe
Ben Cryan
Tamila Dalila Cunha Melo
John Cunningham
Jerome Curll
Victoria Cuthbert
Alex Cutting
Ronnie Dalsgaard
Michael Damm
Christian Dandre
Jenny Danks
Robert Darke
Kathleen Davis
Rachel Day
Camille de 
Carmejane-Vesc
Eleonora De Vos
Alison Devlin
Catherine DeVrye
Geoff Dickson
Cecilia Diemont
Kirsty Dollisson
Joshua Dooney
Scott Douglas
Joanne Drew
Andrew Drinkwater
Sophie Egden
Geoffrey Elliott
Richard Elliott
Julia Elmes
Nick Emmott Bennett
Tianna Emmott Bennett
Tim Ettle
Matthew Fairfax
John Fallon
Jai Farrell
Barrie Feldman



Members 
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Peta Miller

Eliza Monnock

Keira Morris-Akeroyd

Nadia Mulvogue

Charli Munro

Sarah Murdoch

Kenneth Murphy

Jamie Murrell

Ekaterina Myshinskaya

Braden Newling

Laura Newton

Greig Nicholson

Rainer Noack

Mark Northcote

Paul Notaras

Leanne O’Neill

Paul Oates

Sheena O’Beirne

Ryan O’Gorman

Lloyd Osbon

Kelly Owens

Kelly-Anne Packer

Lee Palmer

Mia Paltridge

Fabio Pancaldi

Hayley Parker

Jeffrey Parsons

Sven Peters

Marco Poggi

Ian Poole

Melissa Pye

Simon Rainback

Caroline Raymond

Sophie Reade

Michael Reville

Spencer Richards

David Roberts

Elizabeth Roberts

Cooper Robinson

Paul Roe

Samuel Ruban

Emily Ryder

Wayne Sammut

Elizabeth Scherrer

Carys Scholefield

Kai Schwanke

Jonathon Sellar

Susan Sellar

Peter Sharp

Michael Sheehan

Daphne Sider

Anthony Simpson

Tishaan Siriwardana

Ethan Smith

George Smith

Joel Solomons

Active 18+
Joost Speekenbrink

Alex Stoney

Travis Strike

Murray Sullivan

Penelope Swinney

Chris Taylor

James Thomson

Hamish Thorpe

Jack Tier

Samuel Tier

Nicholas Tomsic

Penelope Treadgold

Sophia Tremenheere

Candice Trevenna

Peter Turnbull

Harry Underhill

Matthew Underhill

Greg Vale

Nic van der Reyden

Karen van Someren

Audrey Vavassori

Marleen Veldhuis

Nicolaas Venekamp

Mate Vigh

Stephan Vissers

Camilla Wacher

Monique Wacher

Skye Wacher

Kelly Walters

Sophie Walters

Charlotte Ward

Claire Ward

Laura Watson

Felicity Weaver

Jocelyn Webb

Katrina Westcar

Catherine White

Rohan Whiteford

Andrew Whitehead

Matt Wilkin

Colleen Williams

Polly Williams

Braiden Williamson

James Frank Williamson

Kyan Winn

Cameron Wise

Errol Woodbury

Maddison Woodbury

Sophie Yates

John Zdrilic

Active 18+ Active 15-18 Yrs
Oliver Crofton

Ashlea Curll

Elisha Cuthbert

Sam Davis

Lachlan Dickinson

Nathan Dickson

Amelie Dooney

India Emmott Bennett

Tom Emmott Bennett

Jacob Evans

Zoe Furniss

Ava Garrett

Luka Gordon

Henry Gorton

Alexis Harvey

Eva Haughton

Noah Hawkins

Camille Hirose

Toby Hughes

Liam Jordan

Harvey Joyce

Marcus Krause

Christopher Kwon

Kalea Lancaster

Olivia Larcombe

Thomas Larcombe

Sean Law

Angus Lechner

Max Lechner

Phoebe Lechner

Isabella Livermore

Finn McMurtry

Rex Morris

Lizzy Mulcahy

Thomas Northcote 

Jessica Oakhill

Utsav Panta

Ky Pratt

Lotte Ravesteijn

Willem Riddington

Eryn Ronge-Smith

Keaten Ronge-Smith

Oscar Rudner

Matilda Sammut

Jocelyn Sellar

Rishi Shankar

Isabel Sharp

Sophie Stacker

Jack Stewart

Charles Studden

Christopher Tomsic

Finley VaughanActive 15-18 Yrs
Tom Breakwell

Tyler Brown

Ava-Lauren Clarke

Charlie Colwell

Duncan Cowan

Cadet 13-15 Yrs
Thomas Abernethy
Catherine Andrews
Daniel Andrews
George Andrews
Kody Burrows
Peach Callaghan
Leilani Clarke
Thomas Crofton
Evie Davis
Taj Hartigan
Isaac Holt
Hannah Huisman
Cai Martin
Thomas McMurtry
Isabelle Nichols
Rory Pennie
Tristan Ravesteijn
Daniel Rich
Adeline Steiner
Olivia Wilson
April Zdrilic
Jasper Zhou
Jeremy Zhou

Award Member
Paul Bailey
Virginia Bennett
Peter Gard
Tom Garrett
Jalna Horn
David Robinson
Liliana Ructtinger
Sybil Walsh

Nippers
Harriet Abercrombie
Bridie Abernethy
Edith Abernethy
Jed Achterstraat
Zali Achterstraat
Eddie Acosta
Maisy Adams
Faris Adebibe Shaw
James Alagich
Mieke Aldous
Aurora Allan
Sebastiano Allan
Lillian Allan-Schneider
Marcus Allan-Schneider
Gabriela Macarena
Alvarado Martinez
Manuel Nicolas 
Alvarado Martinez
James Amery
Arthur Andrews
Lucia Andrews
Fiona Andrews-Denize
Georgia Andrews-Denize
Sebastian Angel
Conor Angove
Darcy Anstee
Edward Archdale
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Linnea Cisecki
Sofia Cisecki
Elle Clark
Joshua Clark
Sloane Clark
Joshua Cleeve
Hugh Clifford
Camden Clock
Audrey Coffey
Poppy Coll
Alexander Collins
Billy Collins
Bruce Collins
Charlie Collins
Finley Collins
Keira Collins
Maxwell Collins
Joel Colwell
Oscar Colwell
Hugh Cominotto
Brayden Compton
Mason Compton
Zoe Conacher
Emily Connors
Oli Cooper
Will Cooper
Camilla Correa
Luca Correa
Henry Costello
Altair Coulson
Bao Coulson
Elyse Crabb
Valentina Cracknell
Jack Croll
Penny Crowe
Sarah Crowe
Magnus Culley
Oliver Cunningham
Mia Cusick
Piper Cusick
Tristan Cusick
Aarav Dahiya
Jack Dajani
Veronica Davies
Vicente De La Barra
Francisco Juan De La Barra
Schmidt
Ignacio Jose De La Barra
Schmidt
Isla Denning
Lulu Dillenbeck
Lucia Dillon
Matilda Dillon
Sinead Dillon
Hunter Dimov
Lea Dinh
Cove Diversi
Charles Ross Dobson
Saffron Dobson
Bree Donnelly
Lennon Donnelly
Levi Donnelly
Lucas Dotta
James Drover

Nippers Nippers
Eve Eames
Solomon Eames
Summer Easton
William Easton
Theo Edquist
Harley Edwards
Vivienne Eichfeld
William Eichfeld
Indiana Eisenhut
Jacqui Ellison
Maddie Ellison
Benjamin Evans
Jacklin Faasse
Cormac Fallon
Taigh Fallon
Cerys Favager
Zoe Favager
Hana Fende
Marcel Fende
Casey Fenner
Erica Fenner
Gabe Fields
Orlina Fotiadis
Zion Franchi
Poppy Freeman
Gustav Frennered
Isabella Garcia
Riley Gashel
Holly Gatward
Thomas Gatward
Adam Gawlik
Jack Georgeski
Elizabeth Gibbins
Ava Gibson
Harry Gibson
Redford Gibson
Hamish Gill
Miranda Gill
Charlotte Gladigau
Kaden Gladigau
Noah Gladigau
Anton Gnieser
Felix Godoy
Elliot Goodridge
Lily Gordon
Sasha Gordon
Aleksander Gorgievski
Bodhi Gould
Rose Gowing
Tilly Gowing
Chiquita Marley Graham
Frankie Helena Graham
Ainsley Gram
Meredith Gram
Coby Grant
Arnold Gray
Naia Graylee
Felix Greig
Rosie Greig
Florence Antoinette
Josephine Guglielmi
Annie Hall
Louis Hall
Sebastian Walt Harmse

Victor Archdale
Louis Armstrong
Manon Austin
Nora Avakian
Chloe Avallone
Scout Backhouse
Caden Badstue
Freja Badstue
Brody Baier
Cali Baier
Layla Baker Schneller
Alex Bankes
Elodie Bankes
Chloe Barnes
Kai Barnes
Lachlan Barnes
Madeline Barrow
Lachlan Barter
William Barter
Chase Bateman
Isabelle Bateman
Ila Baumann
Mia Baumann
Miles Baumann
Madeliene Beckett
Finn Begg
William Begg
Hazel Bentley Parfett
Henry Bergmann
Dylan Bermingham
Maxim Bickelmann
Oliver Bickelmann
Florence Bird
Petra Olivia Bird
Kiara Bond
Indiana Bray
Astrid Bredberg Rynd
Henry Bromwich
Alexander Brown
John Hiro Brown
Baxter Browne
Amelia Budovsky
Addison Burrows
Benjamin Byers
Henry Byers
Lochlan Byrne
Sadie Byrne
Banjo Callaghan
Esther Callaghan
Valentino Caoduro
Caleb Cash
Finley Cash
Siena Cassidy
Maeva Cauvier
April Chalmers
Hayley Chalmers
Darcie Chapelhow
Riley Chapelhow
Archie Chater
Leo Chater
Sam Chesson
Siena Chino
Vera Chino
Alexander Ciobanu

Nippers Nippers
Brooke Harrison
Maeve Harrison
Jacob Harvey
Bronte Hastings
Ella Hawkins
Rhea Hedger
Maeve Heldt
Callum Hill
Zoe Hill
Julio Hochschild
Benvenuto
Franklin Hocking
Maya Hocking
Lula Hodges
Archer Holmes
Antonin Hubacek
Rocco Huber
Noah Hudson
Oliver Hudson
David Huisman
Jules Huisman
Ryk Huisman
Lorenzo Humel-Clarke
Lucy-Mae Hunt
Banks Hunter
Montgomery Hunter
Samantha Hutch-Porta
Thomas Hutch-Porta
Lucia Ibanez Garner
Lucy Jacka
Tom Jacka
Eloise Jackson
Jonah Jackson
Oliver Jackson
Stephanie Jamieson
Wiliam Jamieson
Bence Jekey
Botond Jekey
Hugo Johns
Olivia Johns
Angelina Johnson
Leo Johnston
Elizabeth Jones
Lillian Jones
Imogen Jowett
Jacob Juarez
Arianna Kanis
Madhavi Kaushal
Athan Keir
Ryan Kember
Gabriel Kerr
Ocean Kerr
Emily Killen
Alexander King
Dusty King
Frankie King
Jackson King
Sid King
Geneva Kobelke
Lucas Kondratev
Nathaniel Konstantinou
Nicholas Kwon
Julia Labat
Ethan Lai
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Banjo Laird
Madeleine Lancaster
Victor Lancaster
Ellie Lang
Wolf Lawler
Hugo Laws
Annabelle Lawson
Thia Lazic
Charlotte Lee
Daniel Lee
Alexia Lee-Nassif
Benjamin Lewis
Sophia Lima
Thomas Lima
Isabela Limon Velasco
Titus Lindner
Joe Locke
Lewis Locke
Yvonne Lonard
Allegra London
Valentina London
Charlie Love
Emma Love
Georgia Lovell
Lucia Macartney
Sienna Macartney
Jonah Mackintosh
Reuben Mackintosh
Beckett Madeleine
Parker Magalas
Octave Maizener Zhao
Hazel Manning
Hudson Manning
Murray Manning
Blaise Marais
Siera Marquardt
Deian Martin
Toby Masters
Cora Mathews
Lyla Mathews
Aaryan Mathur
Romeo Maubourguet
Charlotte Maxfield
Charlotte Mccarthy
William Mccarthy
Beauden Mccutcheon
Finlay Mccutcheon
Maisie Mcdonald
Myles Mcdonald
Carter Mcgee
Jemima Mcgee
Ollie Mcgee
Hugo Mcguire
Indigo Mciver
Jack McLean
Oliver Mclean
Harry Mcmurray
Daniel Menezes Costa
Aubrey Miller
Elsie Miller
Ella Mitchell
Rose Moore
Arias Morkel
Leo Morkel

Harry Mcmurray
Daniel Menezes Costa
Aubrey Miller
Elsie Miller
Ella Mitchell
Rose Moore
Arias Morkel
Leo Morkel
Bertie Morosin
Julian Mort
Samuel Mort
Hollie Murphy
Elehna Nedel-Martin
Itamar Nevo
Urya Nevo
Yael Nevo
Charlie Newman
Alanna Newton
Florence Nichols
Zoe Nichols
Evie Nicholson
Harry Nicholson
Imogen Nicholson
Clara Northcroft
Alice O’Brien
Harry O’Brien
Maya Oconnor
Mia Okret
Benjamin Oso-Hughes
Zoe Pacitti
Alice Palmer
Zoe Palmer
Leonardo Pancaldi
Jay Pandyan
Arabella Parnell
Harvey Parnell
Joshua Parsons
Huon Partridge
Ryan Partridge
Helios Parvex
Sky Parvex
Edward Passlow
Max Passlow
Isobel Pearce
Madeleine Pearce
William Pearce
Florence Pearson
Oliver Pearson
Dylan Pelly
Skye Pelly
Iris Pepper
Joseph Pepper
Sofia Piazzoni
Chloe Plowman
Vincent Plowman
William Louis Porter
Graye Preston
Luca Preston
Ayden Prevost
Sidney Prevost
Brooklyn Prodinger
Lexie Pu
Ryan Pu
Hugh Quinn

Isabella Quinn
Joshua Quinn
Julia Ramirez Alsina
Pol Ramirez Alsina
Ivi Ranatawake
Joseva Ranatawake
Alessandro Rapisarda
Asya Ratcliffe
Rome Reeve-Parker
Douglas Renkert
Olivia Rentinck
Ivy Richards
Lachlan Richards
Saxon Richards
Annabelle Rinaldi
Ava Rinaldi
Isla Rinaldi
Emmanuel Roberts
Harper Roberts
Louella Roberts
Poppy Roberts
Noah Rost
Norah Ruckpaul
Melodie Rudner
Charlie Ryan
Rey Sahlestrom-Spence
Audrey Samhan
Heidi Samhan
Jessica Sandford
Benjamin Santry
Zaylah Saraj
Nami Mai-Thi Schippers
Mason Schultz
Kip Scott
Otis Scott
Emilia Scully
Federico Seldner Fernandez
Macarena Seldner Fernandez
Sebastian Serpetti
Lola Seymour
Evelyn Share
Daria Sheehan
Ronan Sheehan
Muku Shines
Daniel Shippen
Joshua Shippen
Jagger Simpson
Thomas Simpson
Hugo Skelton
Lara Skinner
Will Skinner
Freda Skulander
Ava Small
Isla Small
Camden Smith
Florence Smith
Savannah Smith
Sebastian Smith
Sydney Smith
Owen Snell
Lydia Sofia
Rohan Soutar-Reville
River Stackpool
Bowen Stephen

Felix Stephens
Leo Stier
Oskar Stier
Grace Strati
Maxie Strike
Ella-Rose Stuchbury
Anna Studti
Jackson Sumner
Jack Sutton
Leonardo Tagliazucchi-
Claridge
Orlando Tanner
Lauren Tatnell
Isabella Thiel
Jodie Tierney
Sophie Tierney
Elisa Tocco
Archie Todd
Dawson Todd
Oliver Todd
Alannah Toouli
Skylar Toouli
Beatrice Towler
Karlo Travers
Rocco Travers
Rossi Travers
Auri True Caballero
Xander True Caballero
Alan Turner
Nicole Umana
Zoe Van De Peer
Joshua van der Reyden
Pippa Van Der Weegen
Pelayo Varas Ureta
James Vermeulen
Mia Vermeulen
Max Von Konigsmark
Elena Vujovic
Petra Vujovic
Sahara Waldau
Boden Walding
Maxen Walding
Akua Walker
Sarah Walker
Killian Wallace
Frederick Walsh
Gabija Walsh
Isabelle Walsh
Ava Wang
Andriy Wasyluk
Tristan Wellock
Zion Westcar
Hugh Whitley
Tom Whitley
Frederick Willis
Isla Wilson
Frederick Wimpole
Isabel Wimpole
Benson Wineera
Jai Wineera
William Winkles
Elliot Wood
Serita Woollard
Jasper Woolston
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Nippers
Tobias Woolston
Zara Woolston
Harper Young
Jacob Yu
Jayden Yu
Celia Zeller
Evan Zeller
Zaynne Zhou
Andrew Zhuo
Emily Zhuo

Nipper Parents

Nipper Parents Nipper Parents Nipper Parents
Lucille Hassen
Alexi Hastings
Ryan Hedger
Katie Helmuth
Corentine Henrard
Reece Hill
Alison Hitchen
Alexander Hoch
Julio Hochschild -
Fernandez
Claire Hocking
James Hocking
Matthew Hodges
Scott Holmes
Cornelius Horrevoets
Filip Hubacek
Nicholas Huber
Dean Hudson
Jamie Hunt
Kate Hunter
Lauren Huntley
Lara Hurrell
Debra Hutch
David Ibanez Galvan
Chris Jacka
Keri-Jane Jacka
Amy Jackson
Benjamin Jackson
Caroline Jackson
John Jackson
Julian Jackson
Julia Jamieson
Michael Jamieson
Lee Johns
Jessica Johnson
Justine Jonas
Ivana Jones
Jenni Jordan
Paul Jordan
Mitch Jowett
John Juarez
Antonios Kanis
Karen Kao
Shweta Kaushal
Roz Kelly
Simon Kempton
Rochelle Kennedy
Cameron Kerr
Colin Kerr
Clinton Killen
Yuna Kim
Amy King
Brett King
Danielle King
Phil King
Kieran Kobelke
Maria Kondarteva
John Konstantinou
Eduardo Labat
Tony Lai
Cameron Laird
Trent Larcombe
Tracy Lavender
Andrew Lawson
Elaine Lee

Michelle Dillon
Scott Dillon
Yvette Dillon
Robert Dimov
Christopher Diversi
Charles George Dobson
Rich Dobson
Chloe Donnelly
Matthew Donnelly
Kim Dorion
Angus Drover
Meredith Dundas
Daniel Eames
Scott Easton
Fin Edquist
Jackie Edwards
Robert Eichfeld
Dylan Eisenhut
Florence Ekaba Okoko
Veronique Ellison
Lucy Emery
Andrew Evans
Emily Evans
Petra Evans
Remco Faasse
Neil Favager
Klemen Fende
Petra Fenner
Mark Ferguson
Daniel Fields
Yanni Fotiadis
Anna Frennered
Mark Gaffney
David Gao
Kati Garancsi
Luis Garcia
Jared Gashel
Maria Gawlik
Aaron Georgeski
Jessica Georgeski
Monique Gereaux
Caleb Gibbins
Ann-Marie Gibson
Simon Gladigau
Coco Gnieser
Jose Godoy
Katiusca Gomez
Mark Goodridge
Greg Gordon
Nina Gordon
Steven Gorgievski
Clare Gowing
Vincent Graham
Kelsey Gram
Geoff Grant
Nicholas Gray
Matthew Graylee
Massimo Guglielmi
Beatrice Hall
Niklas Hammarstrom
Alice Hanger
Marius Harmse
Ruben Hartigan
James Harvey

Hillary Burrows
Marina Byers
Maria Byrne
Niamh Byrne
Lilia Caballero Pagaza
Jemima Callaghan
Brett Cameron
Cesare Caoduro
Glyn Cassidy
Amanda Cassie-Aldous
Shya Castillo
Billy Cauvier
Katie Chalmers
Luke Chalmers
Megan Chalmers
Jackie Chapelhow
Nicole Chater
Dan Chesson
Kylie Chesson
Kristina Chino
Anna Chrysiliou
Olivia Chrysiliou
Andrei Ciobanu
Iida Cisecki
Adam Clark
Georgia Clark
Malcolm Clark
Michael Clarke
Audra Clifford
Chris Clock
Fiona Coe
Camilla Coffey
Stephen Coll
Andrew Collins
Michael Collins
Sarah Collins
Erin Colwell
Peter Colwell
Adrian Cominotto
Andrew Compton
Kristi Conacher
Imogen Connors
Stephen Connors
Claire Cooke
Sam Cooper
Fabricio Correa
Richard Coulson
Richard Coulson
Kathleen Cowmey
Bryanne Crabb
Jody Cracknell
Veronika Croll
Corina Crowe
Pier Culley
Abigail Cunningham
Paul Cunningham
Sudesh Dahiya
Joseph Dajani
Lidija Damjanovic
Francisco Jose De La-
Barra Gili
Andre Denize
Brady Dennett
Nicholas Dillenbeck

Hayden Abercrombie
Robert Abernethy
Rachel Achterstraat
Christopher Acosta
Kate Adams
Miriam Adebibe
Kai Alagich
Rod Aldous
Stephen Allan
Maria Belen Alsina Manrique
De Lara
Raul Alvarado Bachmann
Andrea Andrews
Chris Andrews
Mary Andrews-Denize
Naiad Victoria Angel
James Archdale
Sarah-Jane Archdale
Christo Armstrong
Giles Austin
Zorik Avakian
Samuele Avallone
Daniel Badstue
Kyla Badstue
Madeline Baker
Natalie Ballard
Marina Bambery
Brigette Bankes
Anna Barnes
Diane Barrow
Brendan Bateman
Oliver Baumann
Jeremy Beckett
Robert Begg
Jill Bentley
Emma Bergmann
Paul Bermingham
Tania Betts
Corinne Beuchat Fotiadis
Aaron Lee Bird
Jennifer Louis Bird
Sam Black
Michelle Bolding
Dawn Bond
Melissa Bonnechere
Amelie Brock
Keith Bromwich
Campbell John Brown
Paul Brown
Whitney Brown
Murray Browne
Michelle Budovsky
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Benjamin Oconnor
Michal Okret
Hanae Okuyama
Joke Op de Beeck
Thais Oso
Michael Oso-Hughes
Daniel Pacitti
Penny Palmer
Mathew Parnell
Andrew Partridge
Georgina Partridge
Arnaud Parvex
Nicholas Passlow
Kate Patterson
Angela Pearce
Kaleb Pearson
Gemma Pepper
Scott Pepper
Francesco Piazzoni
Karen Picton
Max Plowman
Diana Porter
Mark Preston
Bernard Prevost
Xiaofeng Pu
Amelia Pyke
Emma Quigly-Hall
Brendon Quinn
Xavier Ramirez
Joe Ranatawake
Nicole Ranatawake
Alberto Rapisarda
John Ratcliffe
Renata Ratcliffe
Claire Ravesteijn
Belinda Reeve-Parker
Alex Renkert
Frank Rentinck
Steve Richards
Kendall Rinaldi
Ben Roberts
Beatriz Rodriguez
Uli Ruckpaul
Josh Ryan
Jamie Rynd
Carol Saab
Morgan Sadler
Samuel Samhan
Sarah Samhan
Philip Sandford
William Santry
Alexander Christian
Schippers
Hong Ngoc Schippers
Barbara Del Carmen -
Schmidt Canessa
Karen Schneider
Lucien Schneller
Gregory Schultz
Keryn Schultz
Gregory Scott
Regula Scully
Shane Scully
Kate Seccombe

Nipper Parents Nipper Parents Nipper Parents Nipper Parents
Johanna Viktoria Leon
Grant Lewis
Rodrigo Limon Fernandez
Elisa Lindner
Tim Lindner
Juan Liu
Qianqian Liu
Jennifer Locke
Peter Lonard
Yasmin Celeste London
Elizabeth Love
Lauren Lovell
Qi Luo
Fiona Macartneys
Nicholas Magalas
Pierre-Nicolas Maizener
Ali Malone
Constance Mann
Rebecca Manning
Eric Marais
Milko Marinozzi
Bryce Marquardt
Derek Martin
Maria Martin
Gabriela Martinez Elizondo
Jeremy Masters
Colin Mathews
Jennifer Mathews
Stuart Maxfield
Georgia Mccarthy
Andrew Mccutcheon
Brennan Mcdonald
Daniel Mcdonald
Caitlin Mcgee
Hugh Mcguire
Christie Mciver
Simone McLean
Anna Mcleod
Luke McLeod
Aaron Mcmurray
Julie McMurtry
Monica Medic
Lisa Miller
Anna Mitchell
Susannah Mitton
Remona Moodley
Adam Moore
Sabine Moore
Jeanmarie Morosin
Rex Morris
Lisa Mort
Chiara Motola
Killian Murphy
Rachelle Josephine Murphy
Norman Nassif
Katiuce Nedel
Avner Nevo
Rhys Newman
David Newton
Charlotte Nichols
Arabella Nicholson
James Nicholson
Carolyn Northcote
Mark O’Brien

Federico Seldner Sada
Rupa Sengupta
Jaclyn Seymour
Mike Share
Kris Shaw
Patrick Sheehan
Michelle Shippen
Athina Simou
Alexa Simpson
John Simpson
Luke Skelton
Megan Skinner
Emma Skulander
Nicholas Skulander
Benjamin Small
Nicki Small
Amanda Smith
Dom Smith
Katherine Smith
Louise Smith
Dominic Sofia
Susie Sparke
Daniel Spence
Hugh Stackpool
Lara Stackpool
Barbara Stephen
Gabi Stephen
Jan Oliver Stier
Danielle Strati
Tony Strati
Brendan Studti
Carine Studti
Sophie Sumner
Joseph Sutton
John Swane
Patrizio Tagliazucchi
Huong Tang
Daniele Tanner
Melinda Tatnell
Lyanne Thain
Oliver Thiel
David Tierney
Natalie Tierney
Lorenzo Tocco
Chas Todd
Iain Todd
Caoimhe Toouli
Christian Toouli
Oliver Towler
Catherine Travers
Susannah Travers
Amanda Turner
Louis Turner
Maureen Twigt
Jennifer Tyler
Agnieszka Tyszkiewicz-Okret
Nicholas Van De Peer
Martine Van Der Weegen
Chris Van Rijswijk
Cristian Jose Varas Velasco
John Von Konigsmark
Marijana Vujovic
Nikola Vujovic
Rachel Walker

Sayaka Walker
Gordon Wallace
Leila Wallace
Brent Wasyluk
Amy Webster
Chris Wellock
Serene Wellock
Matt Westcar
Jesse Wheeler
Meredith Wheelhouse
Katrina Whitehead
Angus Whitley
Margaret Whitson
Vijay Williams
Alexandra Willis
Sam Willis
Edward Wilson
Justin Wimpole
Michelle Winkles
William Winkles
Chloe Wood
Sam Woollard
Timothy Woolnough
Trinity Woolnough
Amy Woolston
Robert Woolston
Vesna Zadnik
Julia Zandstra
Jacqueline Zeller
Matt Zeller
Alice Zhao
Elfin Zhao
Zhiren Zhuo
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The financial year continued to present curveballs arising from the broader economic environment and our
ageing club premises.  Against unfavourable currents: I am pleased to report an operating surplus of $157,047,
a 40% increase on the prior year and, importantly, in line with our budget.

Cash balances continued to grow to $1.567m at the end of the financial year, $133k (9%) higher than the
prior year.  Over $1m remains on term deposit, the majority secured before interest rates eased in
February 2025.  The Board and finance committee continue to monitor our cash position and ensure the
maximum return for our club.
Revenues increased 11% compared to the prior year.  We are grateful to our growing cohort of generous
donors and sponsors who continue to support our club and, of course, our members. The Cole Classic
netted its largest ever profit. The Club’s new merchandise is selling well. Our two new BBQs have paid for
themselves multiple times over with increased capacity, generating increased revenue (and many happy
customers!).  Membership also increased, a testament to the community spirit espoused by the Club. 
Events continue to inspire the community, providing opportunities to volunteer, complete their first
ocean swim event, or ignite a spark to join the Club or support the club financially.  Events also contribute
to Manly LSC’s support for the broader community.  Since Manly LSC took over the Cole Classic in 2020,
participants have raised over $1m for charities.  You will also see friendly patrol members providing First
Aid (and occasionally dancing the Nut Bush) at the annual Rotary Fun Run and other local events.
Competition results continue to improve across Nippers, Youth, Opens and Masters’ categories, reflecting
the investment in coaching and athlete support.  The number of “pink vests” seen on “dawn patrol”,
returning to the club before 7am (for a “Brew with a view”!) shows the dedication of an increasing cohort
of members to training (and ~20,000 hot showers netting $4,000!).
A 60% increase in investment in education and Patrols (partly funded by generous donations) has enabled
Manly to offer more courses free of charge to members to facilitate upskilling, reskilling, building
confidence and capability on and off the water.
Operating expenses increased by 40%, as a result of general cost increases, the hall interior refresh,
upgrading the Clubs Wifi, and the first full year of full time office staff including our wonderful Operations
Manager Leanne O’Neill and her small but mighty team who continue to deliver cost and operational
efficiencies, address the increasing compliance obligations and the growing list of repairs and
maintenance to our aging club building (building related costs increased 20%) whilst the rebuild wheels
turn (slowly).

Thank you to Leanne O’Neill, Rob Eades and the office staff (Kat and Jen) for their dedication and diligence,
ensuring the annual accounts and annual report once again met the high standards required of financial
reporting and compliance obligations.
Thank you to our passionate and dedicated Board and Finance Committee, led by President Tim Cuthbert,
and all who volunteer across the clubs operations, ensuring every dollar raised is applied to delivery of the
clubs objectives.
Finally, thank you for the opportunity and privilege to serve the club as Treasurer – to protect our “Sky Blue”
and contribute to the financial sustainability of our club for you, for us, for our local community and all who
visit.  Go manly and I’ll see you on the beach (or in the water!)!

Jocelyn Webb
Treasurer 

Treasurer’s Report

“  I am pleased to report that, together, we have
achieved an increase in cash reserves of 9% and

an increase in the operating surplus of 40%
compared to the prior year and, importantly, in

line with our budget”
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Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Report
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 30 April 2025

MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Income & Expenditure Statement for the Year Ended 30 April 2025

Financial Statements
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 April 2025

Financial Statements
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Financial Statements

MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 April 2025

Summary of Significant Accounting Policy

The financial statements cover Manly Life Saving Club as an individual entity. MANLY LIFE SAVING CLUB INC. is a not-for-profit
Association incorporated in New South Wales under the Associations Incorporation Act 2009 (NSW).

The financial statements are special purpose financial statements prepared in order to satisfy the financial reporting
requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act 2009 (NSW), the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 (NSW) and the Australian
Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012 (Cth) and the club's constitution. The Boarde has determined that the
association is not a reporting entity.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the above acts and regulations, the
club's constitution and the following Australian Accounting Standards:

AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements

AASB 107 Statements of Cash Flows

AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

AASB 1031 Materiality

AASB 1048 Interpretation of Accounting Standards

AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures

No other Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations or other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board have been applied.

Accounting Recognition
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE

Leasehold improvements and office equipment are carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation.   In
the event the carrying value of plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount, the carrying value is
written down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when
impairment indicators are present.                
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the association and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation
The depreciation method and useful life used for items of property, plant and equipment(excluding freehold land) reflects the
pattern in which their future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the association. Depreciation commences
from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired
period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements. The depreciation method and useful life of assets is
reviewed annually to ensure they are still appropriate.
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset
are transferred to retained earnings.

Employee Provisions
Provision is made for the association’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the end
of the reporting period. Employee provisions have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is
settled. 

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions are measured
at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts are
presented within current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Accounts Receivable and Other Debtors
Accounts receivable and other debtors include amounts due from members as well as amounts receivable from donors.
Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All
other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Revenue and Other Income
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade discounts
and volume rebates allowed. For this purpose, deferred consideration is not discounted to present values when recognising
revenue.               

Note 1 

Note 2
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Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial  assets is the rate inherent
in the instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been established.                            

Grant and donation income is recognised when the entity obtains control over the funds, which is generally at the time of
receipt.                            

If conditions are attached to the grant that must be satisfied before the association is eligible to  receive the contribution,
recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied.                         

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax. 

Financial Instruments
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition :
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument, and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs, except for those carried at fair
value through profit or loss, which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities are described below. 

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the
financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished,
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are measured at the transaction
price, all financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs (where applicable).

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets other than those designated and effective as hedging
instruments are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:
•  amortised cost
•  fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
•  equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within finance costs,
finance income or other financial items, except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented within other expenses.

Classifications are determined by both:
•  The entities business model for managing the financial asset
•  The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within finance costs,
finance income or other financial items, except for impairment of trade receivables, which is presented within other expenses.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST
receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or
payables in the assets and liabilities statement.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. No value is ascribed to goods for resale that have been
donated to the Association where fair value cannot be reliably determined. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less any applicable selling expenses.

Accounts Payable and Other Payables
Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and
services received by the association during the reporting period that remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current
liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability. 

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies
When preparing the financial statements, management undertakes a number of judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Estimation uncertainty
Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and measurement of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be substantially different.

Impairment
In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating units, based on
expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about
future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

Useful lives of depreciable assets
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility
of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software
and IT equipment.

Inventories
Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most reliable evidence available at
each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may be affected by future technology or other market-driven
changes that may reduce future selling prices.

Long service leave
The liability for long service leave is recognised and measured at the present value of the estimated cash flows to be made in
respect of all employees at the reporting date. In determining the present value of the liability, estimates of attrition rates and
pay increases through promotion and inflation have been taken into account.

Note 2
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Note 3
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Related Party Transactions
The Association’s related parties include its key management personnel and related entities as described below.
Unless otherwise stated, none of the transactions incorporate special terms and conditions and no guarantees were given or
received. Outstanding balances are usually settled in cash.

Transactions with related entities  All key management personnel and volunteers are not compensated for holding office
positions.

The Association had no transactions with related parties during the financial year. 

The Association sourced goods and services from members at market rate during the financial year. All related party services
and contracts are approved by the Board. 

Transactions with key management personnel.

Reconciliation of result for the year to cash flows from operating activities
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
(a) Reconciliation of Cash
For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and at bank and short-term deposits, net of any
outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash as at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to
the related items in the balance sheet as follows:
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 30 April 2025

Financial Statements
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended April 2025

Financial Statements

Note 4

Note 5

Note 6
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended April 2025

Note 7

Note 8

less

less

less

Financial Statements
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended April 2025

Note 9

Note 10 

Financial Statements
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended April 2025

Note 11

Financial Statements
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended April 2025

Note 14

Financial Statements
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended April 2025
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended April 2025
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Statement of Income for the Year Ended 30 April 2025
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Statement of Expenditure for the Year Ended 30 April 2025

Financial Statements
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MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Statement of Expenditure for the Year Ended 30 April 2025

Financial Statements

The Statement of Expenditure does not form part of the audited financial statements and is included for information purposes only
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The Board has determined that the association is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose financial report should be
prepared in accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the Board:

1. The financial report which comprises of the statement of financial position as at   30 April 2025 , and the statement of profit
and loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes is in accordance with the Australian Charities
and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 (Cth) and Association Incorporation Act 2009 (NSW) and 
a) complies with Australian Accounting Standards as set out in Note 1; 
b) complies with the provisions of the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012 (Cth) and the Australian
Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Regulations 2013 (Cth); 
c) complies with the provisions of the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 (NSW) and;
d)  gives a true and fair view of the financial position of  MANLY LIFE SAVING CLUB INC.  as at  30 April 2025  and its
performance for the year ended on that date
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
2. The accompanying statement of comprehensive income is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the profit (or loss) of
the association including fundraising appeals for the last financial year;

3. The statement of financial position is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the association
including fundraising appeals as at the end of the financial year; 

4. The provisions of the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 (NSW), the regulations under the act, and the conditions attached to
the fundraising authority have been complied with by the association; 

5. The internal controls exercised by the association are appropriate and effective in accounting for all income received and
applied by the organisation from any of its fundraising appeal;

6. At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that  MANLY LIFE SAVING CLUB INC. will be able to
pay all of its debts as and when they fall due and payable;

7. The accounts and associated records have been properly kept during the year;

8. Money received as a result of fundraising appeals conducted during the year has been properly accounted for, and;

9. The principal activities of the association during the financial year were the provision of lifesaving services and no significant
change to these activities has occurred.

The accounts of the Association have been made out in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards, other mandatory
professional reporting requirements, the provisions of the Associations Incorporation Act 2009 (NSW), Australian Charities
and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012 (Cth) and the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 (NSW).

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board and is signed for and on behalf of the Board in accordance
with subsection 60.15 (2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Regulation 2013 (Cth) and other
requirements by:

MANLY LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED ABN 37100339513
Director’s Declaration for the Year Ended 30 April 2025

Directors' Declaration 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board 

Jocelyn Webb, Treasurer Tim Cuthbert, President

Dated in Sydney this 4th day of July 2025 Dated in Sydney this 4th day of July 2025
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